(Convenience translation into English of the independent auditors’
report and consolidated financial statements originally issued in Turkish
- See Note 33)

Ege Profil Ticaret ve Sanayi Anonim
Şirketi and its Subsidiaries
Consolidated financial statements for the period
between January 1 - December 31, 2017
and independent auditors’ report

(Convenience translation into English of the consolidated financial statements originally issued in
Turkish)

Ege Profil Ticaret Ve Sanayi Anonim Şirketi and its Subsidiaries

Table of Contents
Page
Independent auditors’ report

1-5

Consolidated statement of financial position

6-8

Consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income

9

Consolidated statement of changes in equity

10

Consolidated statement of cash flows

11

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

12 – 78

Ey

Building a better
working world

Güney Bağımsız Denetim ve
SMMM A.Ş.
Mastak Mahallesi Eski Büyükdere
Cad. Orjın Maslak Plaza Na: 27
Sarıyer 34485
Istanbul Türkiye

Tet: ÷90 212 315 3000
Fax: +90 212 230 8291
ey.com
Ticaret Sicil Na : 479920

-

(Convenience translation of the independent auditors’ report originaliy issued in Turkish)
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Shareholders of Ege Profil Ticaret ve Sanayi Anonim Şirketi;
A)
1)

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the consoHdated financial statements of Ege Profil Ticaret ve Sanayi Anonim Şirketi
(the Company) and its subsidiaries (the Group), which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at December 37, 2017, and the consolidated statement of profit ot loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.
in our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairiy, in ali material
respects, the consolidated financial position of the Group as at December 37, 2077, and its
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with the Turkish Accounting Standards (TAS).
2)

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with standards on auditing as issued by the Capital Markets
Board of Turkey and independent Auditing Standards (IAS) which are part of the Turkish Auditing
Standards as issued by the Public Oversight Accounting and Auditing Standards Authority of Turkey
(POA). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the Code of Ethics for independent Auditors (Code of
Ethics) as issued by the POA, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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3)

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, wete of most significance in our
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a sepatate opinion on these matters.

How the key control issue is handled in the
audit

Key audit matters
Allowance for doubtfu! trade receivables
Trade receivable is considered as an important
balance sheet item as they represent 47% of the
total assets in consolidated statement of financial
position. The tecovetability of trade receivables is
a key element in respect of credit risk and capital
risk management of the Group.

We have performed audit procedures on
existence of ttade receivables, which include
but are not limited to control testing on sales
transactions and tracing back to shipping
documents, sending trade receivable
confirmations and subsequent collection testing
of bank payments. Assessment for the
The balance of the allowance for the doubtful trade recoverability of trade receivables requires
receivables is amounting to TL 44.370.417 with
iudgment. We have performed the appropriate
respect to total trade receivables at amount of TL
audit procedures on the assumptions used to
488.037.490 in the consolidated statement of
determine the amount of allowance for doubtful
financial position as of December 31, 2017.
trade receivables, detailed aging analysis for
trade receivables, evaluation of individual
it requires significant management judgment to
significant overdue trade receivables, review of
determine whether trade receivables might be
legal letters for the ongoing litigations for
recoverable. The Group management assesses alI doubtful receivables, and comparison with legal
other information together with the aging of trade
documentation, where applicable.
receivables, analyzing the risk of ongoing lawsuits
receiving letters from the legal counselors, the
quatifications of the collaterals under the credit risk Details of trade receivables are disclosed under
management and the collection performance in the Note 7.
subsequent period.
Due to the magnitude of the amounts and the
management judgment required for the
collectability evaluations of trade receivables, the
existence and recoverability of trade receivables is
considered as a key audit matter.
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How the key control issue is handled in the
audit

Key audit matters
Deferred tax assets recognized in accordance
with investment incentive certificates

The Company has received an investment
incentive certificate amounting to TL 367 million
under the decision of the “Council of Ministers On
State Aids in tnvestments’ which regulates
investment incentives. As of December 31, 2017,
approximately TL 150,7 million of investment
expenditures wete realized within the scope of
these incentive certificates. As of December 31,
2017, the Company has recognized deferred tax
assets amounting to TL 13,4 million which TL 12,8
million recognized in the current period.
Deferred tax assets accounted for under
investment incentive certificates has been
considered as a key audit matter by us since the
extent ta such assets are accounted in accordance
with the Group management’s significant estimates
and assumptions.

We have involved our tax experts from anothet
entity which is part of the same audit network of
our organization during our audit of the deferred
tax assets accounted under investment
incentive certificates.
We have assessed the estimates of projections
regarding taxable profit based on management
approved future 3-year business plans in terms
of recoverability of the related deferred tax
asset.
Within the scope of our audit, we reviewed and
assessed the material key assumptions of the
Group management used in its related business
plans.
We have confirmed with the accounting
postings of the amount of investment
expenditures during the period which is the
base for the calculation of deferred tax assets.
in addition, we have evaluated the adequacy of
the disciosures in Note 27 in accordance with
TAS 12.

4)

Responsibilities of Management and Ihose Charged with Governance for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with TAS, and for such internai control as management determines is
necessary ta enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from materiai
misstatement, whether due ta fraud or error.
in preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Group’s abiiity ta continue as a going concern, disciosing, as applicable, matters related ta gaing
concern and using the gaing concern basis of accounting uniess management either intends ta
liquidate the Group ot ta cease operations, ot has no realistic alternative but ta da so.
Those charged with governance are responsibie for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting
process.
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5)

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

in an ındependent audit, our responsibilities as the auditors are:
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whethet the consolidated financial
statements as a who e are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud ot error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but 15
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with standards on auditing as issued by the
Capital Markets Board of lurkey and IAS wili always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud ot error and ate considered material if, individualiy ot in the
aggregate, they could reasonabiy be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.
As part of an audit in accordance with standards on auditing as issued by the Capital Markets Board of
lurkey and IAS, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout
the audit. We also:
-

-

-

-

-

-

ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve coHusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, ot the
override of internal control.
Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.
Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.
Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related ta
events ot conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are requıred ta draw attention in our
auditors report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements ot, if such
disclosures are inadequate, ta modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events ot conditions
may cause the Group ta cease to continue as a going concern.
Evaluate the overail presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underiying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities ot
business activities within the Group ta express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit.
We remain soleiy responsible for our audit opinion.
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We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing af the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.
We alsa pravide thase charged with governance with a statement that we have cam plied with relevant
ethical requirements tegatding independence, and ta cammunicate with thern alI relatianships and
athet matters that may teasanably be thaught ta bear an aut independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.
Fram the matters communicated with thase charged with governance, we determine thase matters
that were af mast significance in the audit af the cansalidated financial statements af the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in aur auditar’s repart
unless law ar regulatian precludes public disclasure abaut the matter at when, in extremely tare
circumstances, we determine that a matter shauld nat be cammunicated in aur repart because the
adverse cansequences af daing sa wauld reasanably be expected ta autweigh the public interest
benefits of such cammunicatian.
B) Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1)

Auditars’ report an Risk Management System and Cammittee prepared in accardance with
paragraph 4 af Article 398 af Turkish Cammercial Cade (‘TCC”) 6102 is submitted ta the Baard
af Directars af the Campany an February 21, 2018.

2)

in accatdance with paragraph 4 af Article 402 af the 1CC, na significant matter has came ta aur
attentian that causes us ta believe that the Campany’s baakkeeping activities far the period
]anuary 1 Decembet 31, 2017 and financial statements are not in compliance with laws and
pravisians af the Cam pany’s articles af assaciatian in relatian ta financial reparting.
-

3)

in accatdance with paragraph 4 af Article 402 af the 1CC, the Baard af Directars submitted ta
us the necessary explanations and pravided required dacuments within the context of audit.

The name of the engagement partner who supervised and concluded this audit is Ethem Kutucular.

Güney ğ!1QQnetim ve Serbest Muhasebeci Mali Müşavirlik Anonim Şirketi
A
e fı.rm DTErt 8 Yaung Global Lımıted

Eem.KuübLitr, ?$M
Engment

February 21, 2018
istanbul, Turkey

AmemberfirmofEmstYoungGIoblLimitcd
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Ege Profil Ticaret ve Sanayi Anonim Şirketi and its Subsidiaries
Statements of consolidated financial position
as at December 31, 2017
(Currency – In Turkish Lira (“TL”), unless otherwise indicated)

ASSETS
Current assets
- Cash and cash equivalents
- Trade receivables
- Trade receivables from related parties
- Trade receivables from third parties
- Other receivables
- Other receivables from related parties
- Other receivables from third parties
- Derivative financial instruments
- Inventories
- Prepaid expenses
- Current tax assets
- Other current assets

Note

Audited
Current period
December 31,
2017

Audited
Prior period
December 31,
2016

4
7
7, 29
7
8
8, 29
8
6
9
10
11, 27
18

56.899.490
488.037.490
38.783.850
449.253.640
2.678.925
2.257.750
421.175
108.907.413
4.250.577
4.840.602
3.058.253

109.761.990
383.553.365
17.854.381
365.698.984
1.656.948
1.656.948
6.941.547
85.725.335
5.722.982
1.162.354
13.408.508

668.672.750

607.933.029

2.785.774

2.511.160

671.458.524

610.444.189

317.175
317.175
362.276.349
6.419.235
2.786.573
532.117

374.256
374.256
314.997.352
6.714.471
4.859.662
9.373.946

372.331.449

336.319.687

1.043.789.973

946.763.876

SUB TOTAL
- Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued
operations

26

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS
Non-current assets
-Other receivables
- Other receivables from third parties
- Property, plant and equipments
- Intangible assets
- Prepaid expenses
- Deferred tax assets

8
8
12
13
10
27

TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS
TOTAL ASSETS

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Ege Profil Ticaret ve Sanayi Anonim Şirketi and its Subsidiaries
Statements of consolidated financial position
as at December 31, 2017
(Currency – In Turkish Lira (“TL”), unless otherwise indicated)

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
- Short-term bank borrowings
- Current portion of long-term bank borrowings
- Trade payables
- Trade payables to related parties
- Trade payables to third parties
- Liabilities for employee benefits
- Other payables
- Other payables to related parties
- Other payables to third parties
- Derivative financial instruments
- Deferred income
- Short-term provisions
- Other short-term provisions
- Other short-term liabilities

Note

Audited
Current period
December 31,
2017

Audited
Prior period
December 31,
2016

5
5
7
7, 29
7
17
8
8, 29
8
6
16
14
14
18

63.125.545
80.054.306
213.822.406
3.994.779
209.827.627
5.658.780
41.232.359
41.232.359
3.974.203
128.151.335
5.433.376
5.433.376
3.016.273

59.620.731
64.152.968
228.579.017
1.552.835
227.026.182
5.489.116
86.190
86.190
753.449
94.715.813
5.533.540
5.533.540
2.170.474

544.468.583

461.101.298

-

2.322.656

544.468.583

463.423.954

134.615.504
-

108.161.620
61.289

17
17

11.693.653
11.693.653

61.289
6.155.457
6.155.457

27

-

2.529.370

146.309.157

116.907.736

SUB TOTAL
- Liabilities related to assets classified as held for sale and
discontinued operations

26

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
- Long-term financial liabilities
- Other payables
- Other payables to third parties
- Long term provisions
- Provisions for long-term employee benefits
- Deferred tax liabilities

5

TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Ege Profil Ticaret ve Sanayi Anonim Şirketi and its Subsidiaries
Statements of consolidated financial position
as at December 31, 2017
(Currency – In Turkish Lira (“TL”), unless otherwise indicated)

EQUITY

Note

Audited
Current period
December 31,
2017

Audited
Prior period
December 31,
2016

353.012.233

355.613.979

80.980.793
7.840.703
(1.344.496)
91.952

79.600.000
7.840.703
80.551

(5.972.570)

67.279.390

87.801.538
91.743.971
(3.942.433)

54.974.475
54.956.924
17.551

(1.111.423)
(1.111.423)
26.406.430
91.176.098
67.143.208

(835.621)
(835.621)
19.704.392
66.801.197
60.168.892

-

10.818.207

353.012.233

366.432.186

1.043.789.973

946.763.876

SHAREHOLDER’S EQUITY
Equity holders of the parent
-

-

-

Share capital
Adjustment to share capital
Treasury shares (-)
Share premium
The impact of business combinations of
the entities under common control
Other comprehensive income / expense not to
be reclassified to profit or loss
- Revaluation surplus for tangible assets
- Remeasurement gain/(loss) arising from defined benefit plan
Other comprehensive income / expense to be
reclassified to profit or loss
- Foreign currency translation differences
Restricted reserves
Retained earnings
Net profit (loss) for the period

Non-controlling interests
TOTAL EQUITY
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

19
19
19

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Ege Profil Ticaret ve Sanayi Anonim Şirketi and its Subsidiaries
Consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
for the year ended December 31, 2017
(Currency – In Turkish Lira (“TL”), unless otherwise indicated)

Audited
Current period
January 1 –
December 31, 2017

Audited
Prior period
Restated (*)
January 1 –
December 31, 2016

918.871.588
(667.933.872)

730.624.740
(517.258.433)

250.937.716

213.366.307

(35.882.074)
(105.454.114)
(1.445.883)
71.638.476
(67.290.242)

(54.966.738)
(95.405.259)
(1.250.787)
55.961.367
(41.903.154)

112.503.879

75.801.736

9.066.086
(2.523.484)

2.233.707
(1.918.659)

119.046.481

76.116.784

12.553.270
(58.501.472)

7.823.928
(33.649.798)

73.098.279

50.290.914

(6.242.933)
(629.565)
(5.613.368)

10.025.856
(4.798.027)
14.823.883

66.855.346

60.316.770

287.862

(172.992)

67.143.208

60.143.778

0,0083

0,0074

64.151.184
2.992.024

60.168.892
(25.114)

25.989.983
31.584.030
(4.891.736)

10.326.446
10.954.302
175.391

(702.311)
(1.680.658)

(803.247)
(768.170)

978.347

(35.077)

(291.839)
(291.839)

(4.753.970)
(4.753.970)

Other comprehensive income (loss) (after tax)

25.698.144

5.572.476

Total comprehensive income (loss)

92.841.352

65.716.254

Allocation of total comprehensive income (loss)
Equity holders of the parent
Non-controlling interests

89.849.328
2.992.024

64.932.993
783.261

Note
Revenue
Cost of sales (-)

20
20

Gross profit (loss)
General administrative expenses (-)
Marketing expenses (-)
Research and development expenses (-)
Other operating income
Other operating expenses (-)

21
21
21
22
22

Operating profit (loss)
Income from investment activities
Expenses for investment activities (-)

23
23

Operating profit before financing income (expense)
Financial income
Financial expenses (-)

25
25

Profit (loss) before tax from continuing operations
Continuing operations tax income (expenses)
Current tax income (expenses)
Deferred tax income (expenses)

27
27

Net profit (loss) from continuing operations
Net profit (loss) from discontinued operations

26

Net profit (loss) for the period
Earnings per share from continuing operations

28

Allocation of profit (loss) for the period
Equity holders of the parent
Non-controlling interests
Other comprehensive income (loss)
Other comprehensive income / (loss)
not to be reclassified to profit or loss
Revaluation gain (loss) of tangible assets
Remeasurement gain (loss) arising from defined benefit plans
Taxes related to other comprehensive income (loss)
not to be reclassified to profit or loss
Deferred tax impact of revaluation gain (loss) of tangible assets
Deferred tax impact of remeasurement gain (loss) arising from defined
benefit plan
Other comprehensive income / (loss)
to be reclassified to profit or loss
Foreign currency translation differences

(*)

12
17
27

Explanations regarding the restatement of the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income of
the prior period are included in Note 2.5.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Ege Profil Ticaret ve Sanayi Anonim Şirketi and its Subsidiaries
Consolidated statement of changes in equity
for the year ended December 31, 2017
(Currency – In Turkish Lira (“TL”), unless otherwise indicated)
Other
comprehensive
Other comprehensive income income (loss) to
(loss) not to be reclassified to be reclassified to
profit or loss
profit or loss
The impact of
business
combinations
of
Premium
the entities
s for under common
shares
control

Share
capital

Share
capital
adjustment
differences

Treasury
shares (-)

79.600.000

7.840.703

-

80.551

67.279.390

(93.754)

47.484.058

Net profit for the period
Other comprehensive income (loss)
Total comprehensive income (loss)

-

-

-

-

-

111.305
111.305

Transfers
Increase (decrease) due to share
repurchase transactions
Increase (decrease) due to other changes

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Balance as of December 31, 2016

79.600.000

7.840.703

Balance as of January 1, 2017

79.600.000

7.840.703

-

80.551

67.279.390

17.551

Net profit for the period
Other comprehensive income (loss)
Total comprehensive income (loss)

-

-

-

-

-

Transfers
The impact of business combinations of
the entities under common control
Classification of non-controlling interests to
related accounts
Dividends paid (*)
Increase (decrease) due to share repurchase
transactions
Acquisition (disposal) of a subsidiary
Increase (decrease) due to other changes

-

-

-

-

-

1.380.793

-

-

-

(81.110.148)

-

-

-

-

-

-

11.401
-

9.523.566
-

(46.595)
-

7.280.090
-

16.037
-

-

-

(1.344.496)
-

-

(1.665.378)
-

-

(396.415)

-

-

(6.025.005)
2.863.715
396.415

80.980.793

7.840.703

(1.344.496)

91.952

(5.972.570)

(3.942.433)

91.743.971

(1.111.423)

26.406.430

91.176.098

Balance as of January 1, 2016

Balance as of December 31, 2017

-

80.551

67.279.390

Remeasurement
gain/(loss) arising
Foreign currency
from defined Revaluation
translation
benefit plan
surplus
differences

Accumulated profits

Restricted
reserves from
profit

Retained
earnings

3.454.240

19.704.392

42.850.178

23.277.597

291.477.355

10.147.674

301.625.029

8.790.725
8.790.725

(4.289.861)
(4.289.861)

-

151.932
151.932

60.168.892
60.168.892

60.168.892
4.764.101
64.932.993

(25.114)
808.375
783.261

60.143.778
5.572.476
65.716.254

-

-

-

-

23.277.597

(23.277.597)

-

-

-

-

(1.317.859)

-

-

(796.369)
1.317.859

-

(796.369)
-

(112.728)
-

(909.097)
-

(835.621)

19.704.392

355.613.979

10.818.207

366.432.186

54.956.924

(835.621)

19.704.392

66.801.197

60.168.892

355.613.979

10.818.207

366.432.186

(3.913.389)
(3.913.389)

29.903.372
29.903.372

(291.839)
(291.839)

-

-

64.151.184
64.151.184

64.151.184
25.698.144
89.849.328

2.992.024
2.992.024

67.143.208
25.698.144
92.841.352

-

-

-

5.869.813

54.299.079

(60.168.892)

-

-

-

-

2.251.423

-

(77.477.932)

-

(77.477.932)

832.225
(6.798.517)
- (22.612.209)

2.992.024
-

13.810.231 (13.810.231)
(22.612.209)
-

(22.612.209)

17.551

54.956.924

66.801.197

(*) In accordance with the Ordinary General Assembly Meeting held on April 25, 2017, it was determined to distribute dividend in cash at mount of TL 22.612.209 ( gross dividend per share: TL 0,003).

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Net profit
Total
Non(loss) for the shareholders' controlling
period
equity
interests

60.168.892

67.143.208

Total equity

(9.034.879)
2.863.715
-

-

(9.034.879)
2.863.715
-

353.012.233

-

353.012.233

(Convenience translation of the consolidated financial statements originally issued in Turkish)

Ege Profil Ticaret ve Sanayi Anonim Şirketi and its Subsidiaries
Consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
for the year ended December 31, 2017
(Currency – In Turkish Lira (“TL”), unless otherwise indicated)

Audited
Current period
January 1, –
December 31,
2017

Audited
Prior period
Restated (*)
January 1, –
December 31,
2016

(17.195.255)

134.034.408

67.143.208
66.855.346
287.862

60.143.778
60.316.770
(172.992)

47.619.639
6.242.933
(2.950.420)
20.823.734
7.765.655
(2.673.251)
(6.291.918)
1.555.515
(378.646)
278.482
3.974.203
(3.592.182)
22.865.534

41.039.494
(10.025.856)
1.106.847
15.050.974
1.225.833
3.135.104
18.587.280
928.798
2.943.926
46.438
(6.346.472)
14.386.623

(126.208.445)
(20.508.827)
(105.957.862)
(14.756.611)
14.093.207
921.648

44.446.869
(13.019.883)
(87.092.458)
113.094.566
(5.122.292)
36.586.936

(5.749.657)

(11.595.732)

(4.840.602)
(909.055)

(4.750.470)
(6.845.262)

(32.278.133)

(134.814.843)

(39.104.609)
5.831.564
(2.597.270)
3.592.182

(131.015.133)
1.167.195
(4.966.905)
-

(2.464.488)

23.226.286

248.305.738
(202.445.702)
(22.865.534)
(22.612.209)
(9.034.879)
6.188.098

130.259.761
(92.646.852)
(14.386.623)
-

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents before currency translation differences

(51.937.876)

22.445.851

Currency translation differences effect related to cash and cash equivalents
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period

4

(924.624)
(52.862.500)
109.761.990

(5.967.918)
16.477.933
93.284.057

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period

4

56.899.490

109.761.990

Note
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net profit (loss)
Net profit (loss) for the year from continued operations
Net profit (loss) for the year from discontinued operations

26

Adjustments to reconcile net profit (loss) for the period:
Adjustments related to corporate tax (income) expense
Adjustments related to loss (gain) arising from sale of fixed assets
Adjustments related to depreciation and amortization expenses
Adjustments related to rediscount (income) expense
Adjustments related to impairment loss (reversal) recognised on inventories
Adjustments related to impairment loss (reversal) recognised on receivables
Adjustments related to provisions (reversal) of employee benefits
Adjustments related to provisions (reversal) for litigations
Adjustments related to warranty provisions (reversal)
Adjustments related to change in fair value (gain) loss
Adjustments related to interest income
Adjustments related to interest expenses

27
23
24
9
7
17
14
14
6
23
25

Changes in working capital
Adjustments related to decrease (increase) in inventories
Adjustments related to decrease (increase) in trade receivables
Adjustments related to increase (decrease) in trade payables
Adjustments related to decrease in other receivables
Adjustments related to increase (decrease) in other payables

Cash flows provided by operating activities
Taxes refunded (paid)
Employee termination benefits paid

27

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITES
Purchase of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets
Proceeds from sales of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets
Proceeds from sale of asset-held for sale and discontinued operations, net
Interest received

12,13

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from financial borrowings
Repayments of financial borrowings
Interest paid
Dividend paid
Cash outflows related to treasury shares
Cash inflows (outflows) arising from derivative instruments, net

(*)

Explanations regarding the restatement of the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income of
the prior period are included in Note 2.5.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Ege Profil Ticaret ve Sanayi Anonim Şirketi and its Subsidiaries
Notes to the consolidated financial statements
as of December 31, 2017
(Currency – In Turkish Lira (“TL”), unless otherwise indicated)

1.

The Group’s organization and nature of operations

Ege Profil Ticaret ve Sanayi Anonim Şirketi (“the Company”) is a registered company in Izmir. The
main operations of the Company are manufacturing and sales of all types of plastic pipes, spare parts,
profiles and plastic goods. In the following sections, the Company and its Subsidiaries will be referred
to as “Group”.
The head office address is as follows:
Atatürk Plastik OSB Mh. 5. Cd. No:4 35660 Menemen / İzmir
As of December 31, 2017 and 2016, the shareholder structure of the Company is as follows:

Deceuninck N.V.
Public-owned

December 31, 2017
Ownership rate (%)

December 31, 2016
Ownership rate (%)

95,88
4,12

97,54
2,46

100

100

As of December 31, 2017, 4,12% of the Company’s shares are listed on Borsa Istanbul. The
company's parent and ultimate parent company is Deceuninck N.V.
As of December 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016, the number of personnels by category is as
follows:

Administrative
Manufacture
Total

December 31, 2017

December 31,2016

286
815

271
844

1.101

1.115

The Company acquired 87.60% of the shares in Pimaş Plastik İnşaat Malzemeleri A.Ş. (Pimaş) for a
consideration amounting to TL 85.400.364 from the its parent, Deceuninck N.V. on June 21, 2017.
This acquisition was treated as a " Business combinations between entities under common control"
and is accounted by using pooling of interest method.
In addition to its activities in Turkey, the Company also has operations through its subsidiary in Chile
and its branch in India. The Company has disposed its subsidiary in Brazil with the decision of the
Board of Directors dated June 21, 2017.
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Ege Profil Ticaret ve Sanayi Anonim Şirketi and its Subsidiaries
Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended December 31, 2017 (continued)
(Currency – In Turkish Lira (“TL”), unless otherwise indicated)

2.

Presentation of the consolidated financial statements

2.1 Basis of presentation
The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the
communiqué numbered II-14,1 “Communiqué on the Principles of Financial Reporting In Capital
Markets” (“the Communiqué”) announced by the Capital Markets Board (“CMB”) (hereinafter will be
referred to as “the CMB Reporting Standards”) on 13 June 2013 which is published on Official Gazette
numbered 28676. In accordance with article 5th of the CMB Reporting Standards, companies should
apply Turkish Accounting Standards / Turkish Financial Reporting Standards and interpretations
regarding these standards as adopted by the Public Oversight Accounting and Auditing Standards
Authority of Turkey (“POA”).
The accompanying consolidated financial statements are presented in accordance with the principles
the application of which is required by the announcement published in the weekly bulletin dated 7
June 2013 no 2013/19 of the CMB.
The consolidated financial statements are based on the statutory records of the Company and its
Subsidiaries and presented in TL in accordance with the TAS/TFRS with certain adjustments and
reclassifications to provide a true and fair view of the financial position of the Company and its
Subsidiaries.
Consolidated financial statements are prepared on the basis of historical cost except for the derivative
financial instruments measured at fair value and lands, land improvements and buildings measured at
fair value in accordance with TAS 16 revaluation model.
Functional and reporting currency
The Company uses Turkish Lira (“TL”) as functional currency and reporting currency. The functional
currencies used by the Company’s branch in India and its subsidiaries in Chile are Indian Rupee,
Chilean Peso, respectively. The items of the statement of financial position are translated by using the
foreign exchange rate at the reporting date; and the income and expense items are translated by
using the average rate of exchange for the period. Gains and losses arising from translation
operations are stated in the “foreign exchange translation differences” account in the consolidated
statement of other comprehensive income. The consolidated financial statements as of December 31,
2017 and the prior period financial data used for comparison purposes are all prepared in TL.
Going concern
The Group has prepared its consolidated financial statements in accordance with going concern
assumption.
Approval of the consolidated financial statements
Consolidated financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on February 21, 2018. The
General Assembly and related legal entities have the right to amend the financial statements prepared
in accordance with legal regulations and these financial statements.
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Ege Profil Ticaret ve Sanayi Anonim Şirketi and its Subsidiaries
Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended December 31, 2017 (continued)
(Currency – In Turkish Lira (“TL”), unless otherwise indicated)

2.

Presentation of the financial statements (continued)

Consolidation principles
The consolidated financial statements and disclosures have been prepared in accordance with the
communiqué numbered II-14.1 “Communiqué on the Principles of Financial Reporting in Capital
Markets” (“the Communiqué”) announced by the Capital Markets Board (“CMB”) (hereinafter will be
referred to as “the CMB Reporting Standards”) on June 13, 2013 which is published on Official
Gazette numbered 28676. Companies should apply Turkish Accounting Standards / Turkish Financial
Reporting Standards and interpretations regarding these standards as adopted by Public Oversight
Accounting and Auditing Standards Authority of Turkey (“POA”).
Subsidiaries are the Companies controlled by Ege Profil when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power over the investee.
The subsidiaries consolidated as of December 31, 2017 and 2016 and their shareholding ratios are as
follows:

Deceuninck Importadora Limitada (Chile)
Deceuninck Brasil

December 31
2017

December 31,
2016

99,9%
-

99,9%
100%

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which the control is transferred to the Group and are no
longer consolidated from the date that the control ceases. The statement of financial position and
statements profit or loss of the Subsidiaries are consolidated on a line-by-line basis and the carrying
value of the investment held by Ege Profil and its subsidiaries is eliminated against the related
shareholders’ equity. Intercompany transactions and balances between Ege Profil and its subsidiaries
are eliminated on consolidation. The cost of, and the dividends arising from, shares held by Ege Profil
in its subsidiaries are eliminated from shareholders’ equity and income for the year, respectively. The
carrying value of financial investments held by the Company and the dividends arising therefrom have
been netted from the related equity and profit or loss accounts.
Consolidation principles:
•
•
•

•

•

All balance sheet items other than the paid-in capital of the Company and its subsidiaries
and their equities at the acquisition date are added, and inter-company balances are
eliminated
The Company’s interest in the subsidiaries is set off against the financial assets account of
the Company and the share capital accounts of the subsidiaries.
As of the acquisition date that the entity included in the consolidation becomes a subsidiary
and in the subsequent share acquisitions, the acquisition cost of the Company’s shares in its
subsidiaries is set off against the value representing these shares in the equity account of
the Subsidiary’s statement of financial position drawn up according to fair value.
Shares other than those of the Company shares and its subsidiaries are deducted from all
equity account group items including the paid in/issued share capital of subsidiaries included
in the consolidation and are recognized as “Non-controlling Interests” in the equity account
group of the consolidated statement of financial position.
The purchase and sales among the Company and its subsidiaries and the profit and losses
arising from these transactions are eliminated in the condensed consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income. Profit and losses arising from the purchase
or sale of marketable securities, inventories, tangible and intangible assets, long term
financial assets and other assets among the consolidated group companies are also
eliminated.
(14)
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Ege Profil Ticaret ve Sanayi Anonim Şirketi and its Subsidiaries
Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended December 31, 2017 (continued)
(Currency – In Turkish Lira (“TL”), unless otherwise indicated)

2.

Presentation of the financial statements (continued)

Business combinations between entities under common control
The acquisition of the controlling shares of Pimaş was treated as a " Business combinations between
entities under common control" and is accounted by using pooling of interest method. In accordance
with the decree regarding the “Accounting of Combinations under Common Control” No: 2013-2
promulgated by the POA, the Company has recognized its under common control entities using the
pooling of interest method. In application of the pooling of interests method, the financial statements
were restated as if the merger was completed as of the beginning of the reporting period (January 1,
2016) in which common control was established and presented comparatively as of the beginning of
the reporting period in which common control was established. Besides, in the addition performed, the
merged companies’ receivables from and payable balances are eliminated and the occurring income
and expenses were mutually offset as done in the full consolidation method. Equity items of the
companies were added up the same way and presented.
The explanations regarding the restatement of the Group's consolidated financial statements as of and
for the year ended December 31, 2017 in respect of the consolidation of financial statements of Pimaş
by using pooling of interest method as a business combination involving entities under common
control are presented in Note 2.5 below.
2.2

The new standards, amendments and interpretations

The accounting policies adopted in preparation of the consolidated financial statements as at
December 31, 2017 are consistent with those of the previous financial year, except for the adoption of
new and amended TFRS and TFRIC interpretations effective as of January 1, 2017. The effects of
these standards and interpretations on the Group’s financial position and performance have been
disclosed in the related paragraphs.
i)

The new standards, amendments and interpretations which are effective as at January 1,
2017 are as follows

TAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows (Amendments)
In December 2017, POA issued amendments to TAS 7 'Statement of Cash Flows'. The amendments
are intended to clarify TAS 7 to improve information provided to users of financial statements about an
entity's financing activities. The improvements to disclosures require companies to provide information
about changes in their financing liabilities. These amendments are to be applied for annual periods
beginning on or after January 1, 2017 with earlier application permitted. When the Group first applies
those amendments, it is not required to provide comparative information for preceding periods. The
Group disclosed additional information in its annual consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2017.
TAS 12 Income Taxes: Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealised Losses
(Amendments)
In December 2017, POA issued amendments to TAS 12 Income Taxes. The amendments clarify how
to account for deferred tax assets related to debt instruments measured at fair value. The
amendments clarify the requirements on recognition of deferred tax assets for unrealised losses, to
address diversity in practice. These amendments are to be retrospectively applied for annual periods
beginning on or after January 1, 2017 with earlier application permitted. However, on initial application
of the amendment, the change in the opening equity of the earliest comparative period may be
recognised in opening retained earnings (or in another component of equity, as appropriate), without
allocating the change between opening retained earnings and other components of equity. If the
Group applies this relief, it shall disclose that fact. The Group is in the process of assessing the impact
of the amendments on financial position or performance of the Group.
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Ege Profil Ticaret ve Sanayi Anonim Şirketi and its Subsidiaries
Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended December 31, 2017 (continued)
(Currency – In Turkish Lira (“TL”), unless otherwise indicated)

2.

Presentation of the financial statements (continued)

Annual Improvements to TFRSs - 2014-2016 Cycle
Annual Improvements to TFRSs - 2014-2016 Cycle
TFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities: This amendment clarifies that an entity is not
required to disclose summarized financial information for interests in subsidiaries, associates or joint
ventures that is classified, or included in a disposal group that is classified, as held for sale in
accordance with TFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations. These
amendments are to be applied for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017.
The Group is in the process of assessing the impact of the amendments on financial position or
performance of the Group.
ii) Standards issued but not yet effective and not early adopted
Standards, interpretations and amendments to existing standards that are issued but not yet effective
up to the date of issuance of the consolidated financial statements are as follows. The Group will make
the necessary changes if not indicated otherwise, which will be affecting the consolidated financial
statements and disclosures, when the new standards and interpretations become effective.
TFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
TFRS 15 introduces a single comprehensive model for use in accounting for revenue generated from
contracts with customers. When TFRS 15 enters into force, TAS 18 "Revenue", TAS 11 "Construction
Contracts" and related interpretations, which provide guidance for the receipt of revenue at present,
will be invalidated.
The basic principle of TFRS 15 reflects the amount of revenue that the entity expects to qualify for the
acquisition of goods or services committed to customers to the financial statements. Especially this
standard introduces a five-step approach to income recognition on financial statements:
 Step 1: Define customer contracts
 Step 2: Define the performance obligations in the contracts
 Step 3: Determine the transaction price
 Step 4: Allocation of the transaction price in the contracts to the fulfillment obligations
 Step 5: Acquisition of financial statements when the entity fulfills the performance
requirements
In accordance with TFRS 15, when the entity fulfills its performance obligations, in other words, when
the "control" of the goods or services specified in a performance obligation is transferred to the
customer, the revenue is recorded in the financial statements.
TFRS 15 offers much more guidance for more featured scenarios. In addition, TFRS 15 requires more
comprehensive disclosures in footnotes.
Subsequent explanations of TFRS 15 include the appraisal of whether the actor is a principal or an
agent, and the practice guide for licensing, which determine the performance obligations. Warranties
associated with sales cannot be purchased separately. These guarantees provide assurance that the
products conform to agreed terms. Accordingly, the Group will continue to be responsible for the
security of its products in accordance with IAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets, which are consistent with current accounting transactions.
The Group management does not foresee that the application of IFRS 15 will have a significant impact
on the financial position and/or financial performance of the Group, other than providing more
comprehensive disclosures about the Group's revenue operations.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
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2.

Presentation of the financial statements (continued)

TFRS 9 Financial Instruments
In January 2017, POA issued the final version of TFRS 9 Financial Instruments. The final version of
TFRS 9 brings together all three aspects of the accounting for financial instruments project:
classification and measurement, impairment and hedge accounting. TFRS 9 is built on a logical, single
classification and measurement approach for financial assets that reflects the business model in which
they are managed and their cash flow characteristics. Built upon this is a forward-looking expected
credit loss model that will result in more timely recognition of loan losses and is a single model that is
applicable to all financial instruments subject to impairment accounting. In addition, TFRS 9 addresses
the so-called ‘own credit’ issue, whereby banks and others book gains through profit or loss as a result
of the value of their own debt falling due to a decrease in credit worthiness when they have elected to
measure that debt at fair value. The Standard also includes an improved hedge accounting model to
better link the economics of risk management with its accounting treatment. TFRS 9 is effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018, with early application permitted by applying all
requirements of the standard. Alternatively, entities may elect to early apply only the requirements for
the presentation of gains and losses on financial liabilities designated as FVTPL without applying the
other requirements in the standard. The Group has performed an impact assessment of TFRS 9. This
assessment is based on currently available information and may be subject to changes arising from
further detailed analyses or additional supportable information being made available to the Group in
the future. The impact of standard on all three aspects of TFRS 9 is as follows:
Classification and measurement of financial assets
The Group does not expect a significant impact on its balance sheet or equity on applying the
classification and measurement requirements of TFRS 9. It expects to continue measuring at fair value
all financial assets currently held at fair value. Quoted equity shares currently held as available-forsale with gains and losses recorded in OCI will, instead, be measured at fair value through profit or
loss, which will increase volatility in recorded profit or loss.
Loans as well as trade receivables are held to collect contractual cash flows and are expected to give
rise to cash flows representing solely payments of principal and interest. The Group analysed the
contractual cash flow characteristics of those instruments and concluded that they meet the criteria for
amortised cost measurement under IFRS 9. Therefore, reclassification for these instruments is not
required.
Impairment
IFRS 9 requires the Group to record expected credit losses on all of its debt securities, loans and trade
receivables, either on a 12-month or lifetime basis. The Group will apply the simplified approach and
record lifetime expected losses on all trade receivables. The Group has determined that, due to the
unsecured nature of its loans and receivables, the loss allowance will increase in an insignificant level.
Hedge accounting
The Group determined that all existing hedge relationships that are currently designated in effective
hedging relationships will continue to qualify for hedge accounting under TFRS 9. As TFRS 9 does not
change the general principles of how an entity accounts for effective hedges, applying the hedging
requirements of TFRS 9 will not have a significant impact on Group’s financial statements.
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2.

Presentation of the financial statements (continued)

TFRS 4 Insurance Contracts (Amendments)
In December 2017, POA issued amendments to TFRS 4 Insurance Contracts. The amendments
introduce two approaches: an overlay approach and a deferral approach. The amended Standard will:
In December 2017, POA issued amendments to TFRS 4 Insurance Contracts. The amendments
introduce two approaches: an overlay approach and a deferral approach. These amendments are to
be applied for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018. Earlier application is permitted.
The standard is not applicable for the Group.
TFRIC 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration
The interpretation issued by POA on December 2017 clarifies the accounting for transactions that
include the receipt or payment of advance consideration in a foreign currency.
The Interpretation states that the date of the transaction for the purpose of determining the exchange
rate to use on initial recognition of the related asset, expense or income is the date on which an entity
initially recognises the non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising from the payment or
receipt of advance consideration. An entity is not required to apply this Interpretation to income taxes;
or insurance contracts (including reinsurance contracts) it issues or reinsurance contracts that it holds.
The interpretation is effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018.
Earlier application is permitted. The Group is in the process of assessing the impact of the
interpretation on financial position or performance of the Group.
TFRS 2 Classification and Measurement of Share-based Payment Transactions (Amendments)
In December 2017, POA issued amendments to TFRS 2 Share-based Payment, clarifying how to
account for certain types of share-based payment transactions. The amendments, provide
requirements on the accounting for:
a. the effects of vesting and non-vesting conditions on the measurement of cash-settled share-based
payments;
b. share-based payment transactions with a net settlement feature for withholding tax obligations; and
c. a modification to the terms and conditions of a share-based payment that changes the classification
of the transaction from cash-settled to equity-settled.
These amendments are to be applied for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018. Earlier
application is permitted. The Group is in the process of assessing the impact of the amendments on
financial position or performance of the Group.
Amendments to TAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures (Amendments)
In December 2017, POA issued amendments to TAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint
Ventures. The amendments clarify that a company applies TFRS 9 Financial Instruments to long-term
interests in an associate or joint venture that form part of the net investment in the associate or joint
venture.
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2.

Presentation of the financial statements (continued)

TFRS 9 Financial Instruments excludes interests in associates and joint ventures accounted for in
accordance with TAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures. In this amendment, POA
clarified that the exclusion in TFRS 9 applies only to interests a company accounts for using the equity
method. A company applies TFRS 9 to other interests in associates and joint ventures, including longterm interests to which the equity method is not applied and that, in substance, form part of the net
investment in those associates and joint ventures
The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019, with early
application permitted.
The Group has performed a high-level impact assessment of Amendments. This preliminary
assessment is based on currently available information and may be subject to changes arising from
further detailed analyses or additional supportable information being made available to the Group in
the future. Overall, the Group expects no significant impact on its balance sheet and equity.
TAS 40 Investment Property: Transfers of Investment Property (Amendments)
In December 2017, POA issued amendments to TAS 40 'Investment Property '. The amendments
state that a change in use occurs when the property meets, or ceases to meet, the definition of
investment property and there is evidence of the change in use. These amendments are to be applied
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018. Earlier application is permitted. The Group is
in the process of assessing the impact of the amendments on financial position or performance of the
Group.
TFRS 10 and TAS 28: Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or
Joint Venture - Amendments
In December 2017, POA postponed the effective date of this amendment indefinitely pending the
outcome of its research project on the equity method of accounting. Early application of the
amendments is still permitted.
Annual Improvements to TFRSs - 2014-2016 Cycle
In December 2017, POA issued Annual Improvements to TFRS Standards 2014–2016 Cycle,
amending the following standards:
-

TFRS 1 First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards: This amendment
deletes the short-term exemptions about some TFRS 7 disclosures, IAS 19 transition provisions
and IFRS 10 Investment Entities. These amendments are to be applied for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2018.

-

TAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures: This amendment clarifies that the election
to measure an investment in an associate or a joint venture held by, or indirectly through, a
venture capital organisation or other qualifying entity at fair value through profit or loss applying
TFRS 9 Financial Instruments is available for each associate or joint venture, at the initial
recognition of the associate or joint venture. These amendments are to be applied for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018. Earlier application is permitted.

The Group is in the process of assessing the impact of the amendments on financial position or
performance of the Group.
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Presentation of the financial statements (continued)

iii)

The new standards, amendments and interpretations that are issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (IASB) but not issued by Public Oversight Authority (POA)

The following standards, interpretations and amendments to existing IFRS standards are issued by the
IASB but not yet effective up to the date of issuance of the financial statements. However, these
standards, interpretations and amendments to existing IFRS standards are not yet adapted/issued by
the POA, thus they do not constitute part of TFRS. The Group will make the necessary changes to its
consolidated financial statements after the new standards and interpretations are issued and become
effective under TFRS.
Annual Improvements – 2010–2012 Cycle
IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement
As clarified in the Basis for Conclusions short-term receivables and payables with no stated interest
rates can be held at invoice amounts when the effect of discounting is immaterial. The amendment is
effective immediately.
Annual Improvements – 2011–2013 Cycle
IFRS 16 Leases
The IASB has published a new standard, IFRS 16 'Leases'. The new standard brings most leases onbalance sheet for lessees under a single model, eliminating the distinction between operating and
finance leases. Lessor accounting however remains largely unchanged and the distinction between
operating and finance leases is retained. IFRS 16 supersedes IAS 17 'Leases' and related
interpretations and is effective for periods beginning on or after January 1, 2019, with earlier adoption
permitted if IFRS 15 'Revenue from Contracts with Customers' has also been applied. The Group is in
the process of assessing the impact of the standard on financial position or performance of the Group.
IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments
The interpretation clarifies how to apply the recognition and measurement requirements in “IAS 12
Income Taxes” when there is uncertainty over income tax treatments.
When there is uncertainty over income tax treatments, the interpretation addresses:
(a) whether an entity considers uncertain tax treatments separately;
(b) the assumptions an entity makes about the examination of tax treatments by taxation authorities;
(c) how an entity determines taxable profit (tax loss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits
and tax rates; and
(d) how an entity considers changes in facts and circumstances.
An entity shall apply this Interpretation for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January
2019. Earlier application is permitted. If an entity applies this Interpretation for an earlier period, it shall
disclose that fact. On initial application, an entity shall apply the interpretation either retrospectively
applying IAS 8, or retrospectively with the cumulative effect of initially applying the Interpretation
recognised at the date of initial application.
The Group is in the process of assessing the impact of the interpretation on financial position or
performance of the Group.
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IFRS 17 - The New Standard for Insurance Contracts
The IASB issued IFRS 17, a comprehensive new accounting standard for insurance contracts
covering recognition and measurement, presentation and disclosure. IFRS 17 model combines a
current balance sheet measurement of insurance contract liabilities with the recognition of profit over
the period that services are provided. Certain changes in the estimates of future cash flows and the
risk adjustment are also recognised over the period that services are provided. Entities will have an
option to present the effect of changes in discount rates either in profit and loss or in OCI. The
standard includes specific guidance on measurement and presentation for insurance contracts with
participation features. IFRS 17 will become effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after
1 January 2021; early application is permitted. The Group is in the process of assessing the impact of
the standard on financial position or performance of the Group.
Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation (Amendments to IFRS 9)
In October 2017, the IASB issued minor amendments to IFRS 9 Financial Instruments to enable
companies to measure some prepayable financial assets at amortised cost.
Applying IFRS 9, a company would measure a financial asset with so-called negative compensation at
fair value through profit or loss. Applying the amendments, if a specific condition is met, entities will be
able to measure at amortised cost some prepayable financial assets with so-called negative
compensation.
The amendments are effective from annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019, with early
application permitted.
The Group has performed a high-level impact assessment of Amendments. This preliminary
assessment is based on currently available information and may be subject to changes arising from
further detailed analyses or additional supportable information being made available to the Group in
the future. Overall, the Group expects no significant impact on its balance sheet and equity.
Annual Improvements – 2015–2017 Cycle
In December 2017, the IASB announced “Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2015–2017”.
•

•
•

IFRS 3 Business Combinations and IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements — The amendments to IFRS 3
clarify that when an entity obtains control of a business that is a joint operation, it remeasures
previously held interests in that business. The amendments to IFRS 11 clarify that when an entity
obtains joint control of a business that is a joint operation, the entity does not remeasure
previously held interests in that business.
IAS 12 Income Taxes — The amendments clarify that all income tax consequences of dividends
(i.e. distribution of profits) should be recognised in profit or loss, regardless of how the tax arises.
IAS 23 Borrowing Costs — The amendments clarify that if any specific borrowing remains
outstanding after the related asset is ready for its intended use or sale, that borrowing becomes
part of the funds that an entity borrows generally when calculating the capitalisation rate on
general borrowings.

The Group is in the process of assessing the impact of the amendments on financial position or
performance of the Group. The amendment are not applicable for the Group and will not have an
impact on the financial position or performance of the Group.
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Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement” (Amendments to IAS 19)
On February 2018, the IASB published Amendments to IAS 19 “Plan Amendment, Curtailment or
Settlement” to harmonise accounting practices and to provide more relevant information for decision
making. The amendments require entities to use updated actuarial assumptions to determine current
service cost and net interest for the remainder of the annual reporting period after a plan amendment,
curtailment or settlement occurs. An entity shall apply these amendments for annual reporting periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2019. Earlier application is permitted. If an entity applies these
amendments for an earlier period, it shall disclose that fact. The Group is in the process of assessing
the impact of the interpretation on financial position or performance.
2.3

Summary of important accounting policies

Financial instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to both a financial asset of one enterprise and a
financial liability or equity instrument of another enterprise.
A financial asset is any asset that is:
•
Cash
•
A contractual right to exchange financial instruments from another enterprise under conditions
that are potentially favorable, or,
•
A contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset from another enterprise
•
An equity instrument of another enterprise.
A financial liability that is a contractual obligation:
•
To deliver cash or another financial asset to another enterprise, or
•
To exchange financial instruments with another enterprise under conditions that are potentially
unfavorable.
When a financial asset or financial liability is recognized initially, it is measured at its cost, which is the
fair value of the consideration given (in the case of an asset) or received (in case of a liability) for it.
Transaction costs are included (deducted for financial liabilities) in the initial measurement of all
financial assets and liabilities.
Effective interest method
The effective interest rate method is a method of calculating the amortized cost of a financial asset
and of allocating the interest income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the ratio
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to
the net present value of the financial asset or in a shorter period where appropriate.
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Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash and balances with banks with an original maturity of three
months or less. Cash and cash equivalents are short term and highly liquid assets which can easily be
converted into cash, with an original maturity of maximum three months and without carrying an
insignificant risk of impairment.
Cash is consists of the Turkish lira and foreign currency balances. Turkish Lira balances are shown
with their book value, while foreign currencies are shown in the records with the converted values in
Turkish Lira using the exchange rate of TC Central Bank's reporting date.
Bank deposits include time deposit and demand deposit and their interest. Turk Liras deposits
recorded cost value, foreign currency deposits shows value which valuated at amount at TCMB
currency rate at the end of reporting period.
The receivables that exceed the valuation period are included in trade receivables and are subject to
rediscount during the reporting period.
Cash and cash equivalents denominated in foreign currencies are deemed to be equivalent to their fair
values due to the fact that they are translated into Turkish Lira at the current exchange rates at the
reporting date.
Bank deposits are assumed to be the same as their fair values because their carrying amounts and
the checks are carried at fair value in the short term and there is no risk of impairment
Trade receivables
Cheques receivables classified as trade receivables are carried at amortized cost using the effective
interest rates, after deducting the allowance for doubtful trade receivables from the invoiced amount.
Provision for doubtful receivables is set aside if there is a perceptible indication that receivables that
are past due are not collected. If the receivables are not completely possible, they are completely
deleted from the records when they are detected. Provisions are those estimated by the Company's
management and considered to cover possible losses that may arise from the economic conditions or
the nature of the accident
The discounted value of trade receivables and the provision for doubtful receivables are assumed to
be equivalent to the fair value of the assets.
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Financial liabilities
Short term and long term bank loans and trade payable
Short-term and long-term bank loans, principal and interest expenses accrued at the end of the
reporting period are presented in the records with their discounted amounts by using the effective
interest rate method.
Post-paid checks reflected in trade and other payables and trade payables are recorded at amortized
cost, which represents the fair value of future invoiced or uninvoiced amounts related to the purchase
of goods and services.
The fair value of short- and long-term bank loans; it is assumed that the cost of the mentioned financial
liabilities is equivalent to the carrying amount of interest payable which is calculated over the effective
interest rate and accrued at the end of the reporting period. Similarly, discounted cost values of trade
payables are accepted as fair values.
Related parties
(a)

A person or a close member of that person's family is related to a reporting entity if that person
(i)
(ii)
(iii)

(b)

has control or joint control over the reporting entity,
has significant influence over the reporting entity; or,
is a member of the key management personnel of the reporting entity or of a parent of the
reporting entity.

An entity is related to a reporting entity if any of the following conditions applies:
(i)
(ii)
(iii)
(iv)
(v)

(vi)
(vii)

The entity and the reporting entity are members of the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the others).
One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or an associate or joint venture
of a member of a group of which the other entity is a member).
Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.
One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an associate of the third
entity.
The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of either the
reporting entity or an entity related to the reporting entity. If the reporting entity is itself such
a plan, the sponsoring employers are also related to the reporting entity.
The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in (a).
A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

A related party transaction is a transfer of resources, services or obligations between a reporting entity
and a related party, regardless of whether a price is charged. In the financial statements, the
shareholders of the Company, the companies they own, their directors and other groups known to be
related are defined as related companies.
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The book value of receivables from related parties and the liability to related parties is assumed to be
equivalent to the fair value of assets and liabilities.
The Group has defined senior management such as Chairman and Executive Director and General
Manager to the senior management.
Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Costs comprise purchase cost and,
where applicable and those overheads that have been incurred in bringing the inventories to their
present location and condition.
Raw material cost is calculated using the weighted average method. Direct material cost and labour
cost and fixed and variable general administration cost included at certain rates to work in process and
finished goods and calculated using weighted average method. Net realizable value is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs necessary to make the sale.
Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment, if
any, after deducting the provision for impairment, except for land, land and land improvements and
buildings, whose fair values are reflected in their revaluation model.
Cost value of tangible asset; the purchase price, the import tax, and the non-taxable taxes, are
expenses incurred to make the tangible asset ready for use. Costs such as repairs and maintenance
that occur after the use of the tangible asset have been recorded as expense in the period in which
they are incurred. If expenditure provides an economic value increase in the future use of the related
tangible asset, these expenditures are added to the cost of the asset and amortized over the
remaining economic life These assets are recognized in the income (expense) accounts of investment
activities in the income statement or profit or loss income statement on the net book value of the
related tangible asset when they are sold or disposed of.
The revenues measured in accordance with the revaluation model are shown by deducting the
accumulated amortization from the fair values of the buildings and underground structures and
buildings. The difference between the net book value determined after deducting the accumulated
depreciation from the historical cost value and the fair value is followed up with the net deferred tax
effect on the "Property, plant and equipment revaluation and measurement gains (losses)" account
under equity. The fair value of property, plant and equipment measured in accordance with the
Group's revaluation model was lastly exercised by a real estate appraisal company licensed by the
Capital Markets Board in 2017.
In addition, the difference between the depreciation calculated based on the revalued amount carried
at the asset and the depreciation calculated based on the first day value of the asset has been
transferred from the tangible fixed assets revaluation fund under the depreciation effect equity
accounts calculated annually by the linear method considering the economic life together with the
deferred tax effect are transferred to the retained earnings (losses) account.
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Depreciation is provided using the straight-line method based on the estimated useful lives of the
assets. Land is not depreciated as it is deemed to have an indefinite life.
The annual depreciation rates accordingly the estimated useful lives for tangible assets are as follows:
Period (Year)
Land improvements
Buildings
Furniture and fixtures
Machinery and equipment
Motor vehicles
Other tangible fixed assets

2-40
10-45
3-10
2-25
4-8
5

Intangible assets
Intangible assets and accumulated amortization of the cost, if any, shown by their impairment loss.
Intangible assets consist of licence that are bought, brand, industrial software, dealer list, software
licence right and other rights and they capitalized according to IFRS 3 assets that are composed of
other rights and are capitalized at the fair value determined at the time of purchase in accordance with
IFRS 3 "Business Combinations". Positive goodwill, trademark and outsourced license fee resulting
from the related business combination are not subject to amortization due to the non-existence of a
certain economic life, but it is examined whether there is any impairment in the carrying value each
year.
Other intangible assets (software licensing rights and other rights) are amortized over the estimated
useful life of the asset in accordance with the normal depreciation method of 3-20 years. The carrying
values of these intangible assets are reviewed for impairment when events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable.
Goodwill
Goodwill is measured as the sum of the fair value of the acquiree's share of the previously acquired
acquiree's share of the consideration transferred, the non-controlling interests ownership in the
acquiree and, if any, the acquiree in an incremental business combination, the identifiable assets of
the acquiree at the date of acquisition, and is calculated as the amount exceeding the net amount of
the identifiable liabilities assumed. If the entity acquired after reassessment exceeds the net amount of
identifiable assets and identifiable liabilities recognized at the acquisition date, the fair value of the
transferred consideration, the non-controlling interests in the acquired business and, if any, the fair
value of the interests in the business acquired prior to the acquisition, are recognized directly in profit
or loss as gain on disposal.
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Research and development expenses
When research expenses realized, they are recorded as an expense.
Intra-business intangible assets arising from development activities (or stage of development of an
internal project) are accounted for only when the following conditions are met:







it is technically feasible to complete the intangible asset so that it can be ready for use or
ready for sale,
intent to commit, use or sell intangible assets,
the intangible asset can be used or sold,
how the asset will provide a prospective economic benefit,
completing the development of the intangible asset, i.e. having appropriate technical, financial
and other resources to use or sell the asset; and
the cost of developing the asset can be reliably measured during the development process.

Other development costs that do not meet the above criteria are recorded as expense when realized.
Research and development expenses recorded as expense in previous period cannot be capitalized in
subsequent periods.
Additional development and improvement costs that are incurred in the subsequent periods for the
capitalized development costs are recognized in the records of the above criteria and accounted for at
the economic life of the related intangible asset. Group management reviews the ongoing product
development costs on a project-by-project basis in every reporting period.
Non-current assets held for sale
Non-current assets held for sale represent real estate acquired in return for the obligations of the
debtors to the payment difficulty. These assets are presented with the lower of the carrying value or
the fair value of the Company's records in consideration of the value set in their title. When the court
obtains the right to use the asset with the request of the order or the customer, the amount of the
related doubtful trade receivables is classified in the fixed assets held for sale net of the value
determined in the expert reports and the difference between the fair value and the trade receivable
amount is reflected in the income statement. The Company does not amortize these assets as long as
they do not use them for their operations. When these assets are sold, the difference between the
sales revenue and the carrying value of the asset is reflected in the income statement.
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Foreign currency transactions
Foreign currency assets and liabilities included in the statement of financial position are presented at
Turkish Liras by changing the end of the reporting period The Central Bank is converted into Turkish
liras using the exchange rate. Transactions related to foreign currency realized during the period are
translated into Turkish Lira using the actual rates on the transaction date. Foreign exchange gains and
losses arising from these transactions are included in comprehensive income statements
Non-monetary items measured at historical cost in foreign currency are translated into TL using the
exchange rates at the transaction date. Foreign exchange differences arising from the remeasurement
of foreign currency are reflected in the profit or loss accounts in the profit or loss accounts, if the
operating activities are income and expense from the operating activities and if the investment
activities are income and expenses from investment activities and in the financing activities.
The exchange rates used in the yearend are as follows:

December 31, 2017
December 31, 2016

TL/USD

TL/Euro

3,7719
3,5192

4,5155
3,7099

Impairment of non-financial assets
At each balance sheet date, the Group assesses whether there is any indication that book value of
tangible and intangible assets, calculated by acquisition cost less accumulative amortization, is
impaired. When an indication of impairment exists, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of
such assets. When individual recoverable value of assets cannot be measured, recoverable value of
cash generating unit of that is measured.
Recoverable amount is the higher of value in use or fair value less costs to sell. Value is use is the
present value of the future cash flows expected to be derived from an asset or cash-generating unit by
using discount rates before taxes that reflects risks related with that asset. The main estimates that
are used during these analyse comprise expected inflation rates, expected increase in sales and cost
of sales, expected changes in export-domestic market composition and expected growth rate of the
country.
If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset (cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount.
An impairment loss is recognized immediately in the statement of comprehensive income
Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the assets (cash-generating
unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount (net amount less depreciation) that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in previous years. Impairment loss
cannot be reversed in the statement of comprehensive income in the future periods.
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Taxes calculated on the basis of the company's earnings
Turkish tax legislation does not permit a parent company and its subsidiary to file a consolidated tax
return. Therefore, provisions for taxes, as reflected in the consolidated financial statements, have been
calculated on a separate-entity basis.
Tax expense includes current tax expense and deferred tax expense. Tax is included in the income
statement, provided that it is not related to an operation that is accounted for directly under equity.
Otherwise, the tax is accounted under equity as well as the related transaction.
Current tax
Current tax expense is calculated taking into account tax legislation in force in the countries where the
Group's subsidiaries operate as of the date of the statement of financial position. According to Turkish
tax legislation, legal or business centers institutions in Turkey, the corporation is subject to tax. Current
year tax liability is calculated on the portion of the period profit subject to taxation. Taxable profit differs
from the profit included in the income statement because it excludes taxable or tax deductible items in
other years or taxable items that cannot be deducted from taxable income. The Group's current tax
liability is calculated using tax rates that are legally enacted or substantively enacted by the balance
sheet date.
The corporate tax rate in Turkey is 20% (However, the Corporate Tax Law added to the provisional
10th in the 20% corporate tax rate in accordance with Article of the institutions in 2018, for 2019 and
belongs to the taxation period of 2020, corporate earnings will be applied 22% ( 2016: 20%) Corporate
tax rate is applied to the corporate income of the corporation in the net corporate income to be
deducted in accordance with the tax legislation and deduction of the exemptions and discounts in the
tax laws. Day until the evening of the month and until the end of the month is paid one installment
Corporations declare their advance tax returns at the rate of 20% (22% for taxation periods of 2018,
2019 and 2020) on their quarterly financial profits until the 14th day of the second month following that
period and pay till the evening of the seventeenth day. The temporary tax paid during the year
belongs to that year and is deducted from the corporation tax that will be calculated on the tax
declaration of the institutions to be given in the following year. If the temporary tax amount paid
remains in spite of the indictment, this amount can be deducted from the cash withdrawal.
According to the Corporate Tax Law, financial losses shown on the declaration can be deducted from
the corporate tax base of the period not exceeding 5 years. Declarations and related accounting
records can be examined within five years of tax.
In Turkey, the resident companies from corporation tax and not responsible for the income tax and
who are resident in Turkey, those made to those except for exempt and non-natural persons and
dividend payments to legal persons not resident in Turkey are subject to 15% income tax.
Dividend payments made to resident corporations in Turkey again from resident companies in Turkey
are not subject to income tax. In addition, if the profit is not distributed or added to the capital, the
income tax is not calculated.
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Turkish tax legislation does not permit a parent company, its subsidiaries, to file a tax return on its
consolidated financial statements. For this reason, tax liabilities reflected in the Consolidated Financial
Statements of the Group are separately calculated for all companies included in the scope of
consolidation. The taxes payable on the statement of financial position as of 31 December 2017 and
December 31, 2016 are netted off for each subsidiary and classified separately in the consolidated
financial statements.
As of December 31, 2017 and 2016, the tax provision has been set aside under the current tax
legislation.
50% of the profits arising from the sale of the immovable assets held in the assets for the same period
as the 75% of the profits arising from the sale of founders' shares, founding shares and preferential
rights, To be added to the capital as stipulated in the Corporate Tax Law or to be kept in a special fund
account for 5 years.
Deferred tax
Deferred tax is determined by calculating the temporary differences between the carrying amounts of
assets/liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases, used in the computation
of the taxable profit, using currently enacted tax rates. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized
for all taxable temporary differences where deferred tax assets resulting from deductible temporary
differences are recognized to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary difference can be utilized. Such assets and liabilities are not
recognized if the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in
a business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable
profit nor the accounting profit.
As of 31 December 2017, the tax rate of 22% is used for the temporary differences expected to be
realized / settled within 3 years (2018, 2019 and 2020) for deferred tax calculation since the tax rate
applicable for 3 years has been changed to 22%. However, 20% tax rate is used for the current
differences expected / expected to be incurred after 2020 since the tax rate applicable for post-2020
corporations is 20%.
Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for taxable temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries and associates, and interests in joint ventures, except where the Group is able to control
the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse
in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences associated
with such investments and interests are only recognized if it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilize the benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected
to reverse in the foreseeable future
The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of
the asset to be recovered
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
period in which the liability is settled or the asset realized, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date. The measurement of deferred tax
liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the
Group expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.
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Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority and the Group intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis
Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates that have been enacted by the balance sheet date.
Tax is recognized in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, except to the extent that it
relates to items recognized in equity. Taxes arisen on items recognized in equity are recognized
directly in equity.
Deferred income tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences; whereas deferred
income tax assets resulting from deductible temporary differences are recognized to the extent that it
is probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary difference
can be utilized. Deferred income tax asset is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the entity
will have sufficient taxable profit in the same period as the reversal of the deductible temporary
difference arising from tax losses carried forward.
Deferred income tax assets and deferred income tax liabilities related to income taxes levied by the
same taxation authority are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets
against current tax liabilities. Deferred income tax assets and deferred income tax liabilities are
classified as long-term in the consolidated financial statements.
Income and expenses
Accruals basis accounting is applied for the recognition of revenue and expenses. The accrual
concept requires that revenue, income and profits should be matched with costs, expenses and losses
belonging to the same period.
Interest income is accrued on an effective interest rate basis. In the case of unpaid interest accrual
before the acquisition of an interest-bearing security; the collected interest is divided into preacquisition and post-acquisition periods and only the portion after the acquisition is reflected in the
financial statements as revenue.
Dividend income is recognized in the financial statements when the right to receive payment arises.
Revenues
Sales revenue is measured by the fair value of the purchase or receipt.
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognized when the entity has transferred to the buyer the
significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods, when the entity retains neither continuing
managerial involvement to the degree usually associated with ownership nor effective control over the
goods sold, when the amount of revenue can be measured reliably, when it is probable that the
economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the entity, and when the costs incurred
or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can be measured reliably. Net sales are invoiced
amounts of delivered goods excluding sales returns.
Derivative financial instruments
The Company makes forward foreign exchange contracts in the foreign currency market. According to
the Company's risk management policies, such futures contracts entered for hedging purposes are
classified as held for trading because they do not meet the requirements for hedge accounting in
accordance with IAS 39 (Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement) Liabilities and assets
are recognized at fair value and changes in fair value are reflected in the income statement.
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Earnings per share
Earnings per share indicated in the statements of comprehensive income are determined by dividing
net profit for the year by the weighted average number of shares that have been outstanding during
the year.
Companies can increase their share capital by making a pro-rata distribution of shares (bonus shares)
to existing shareholders from retained earnings. For the purpose of earnings per share computations,
the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year has been adjusted in respect of
bonus shares issues without a corresponding change in resources, by giving them retroactive effect
for the year in which they were issued and for each earlier year.
Provisions and contingencies assets and liabilities
Provisions
Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of
past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, and a
reliable estimate of the amount can be made
In cases where the time value of money is material, provisions are determined as the present value of
expenses required to be made to honour the liability. The rate used to discount provisions to their
present values is determined taking into account the interest rate in the related markets and the risk
associated with the liability. This discount rate does not consider risks associated with future cash flow
estimates.
Warranty provision
The Company provides replacement, maintenance and repair services for items sold that meet certain
criteria. The company makes provision for two per thousand of the annual sales based on past
experience for the commitment in question.
Contingent assets and liabilities
A contingent liability is an obligation arising from a past event that is not fully under the control of the
entity and arises from past events or events in which one or more non-contingent events occur in the
future and can be verified; but not included in the financial statements for the following reasons:
(i)
(ii)

There is no possibility of leaving economically beneficial resources out of business to meet the
obligation, or,
The amount of the obligation cannot be measured sufficiently reliably..

A contingent asset arises from past events and that is not in full control of the entity and whose
existence will be confirmed if one or more uncertain events occur in the future.
The presentation of contingent assets in the financial statements is not included in the financial
statements, as it may result in the recognition of an income that can never be obtained. However, if it
is virtually certain that an income will be obtained, the asset is not a conditional asset and is reflected
in the financial statements.
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Presentation of the financial statements (continued)

Employee benefits:
Defined benefit plans (the provision for severance pay)
In accordance with existing social legislation in Turkey, the Group is required to make lump-sum
termination indemnities to each employee who has completed over one year of service with the Group
and whose employment is terminated due to retirement or for reasons other than resignation or
misconduct. Furthermore, the Group has an employee benefit plan, namely “Seniority Incentive Bonus”,
which is paid to employees with a certain level of seniority.
In the consolidated financial statements, the Group has recognized a liability using the “Projected Unit
Credit Method” based upon factors derived using the Group’s experience of personnel terminating and
being eligible to receive benefits, discounted by using the current market yield at the balance sheet
date on government bonds. All actuarial gains and losses are recognized in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income
Provision for unused vacation
The liabilities arising from unused vacation rights, which are defined as long-term provisions provided
to the employees, are accrued and accounted for at the period when they are earned.
Leases
Financial leasing
Financial leases that transfer all the risks and benefits of ownership of the leased asset are reflected at
the beginning of the lease on the basis of the fair value of the leased asset and the present value of
the lease payments. Financial lease payments are allocated as principal and finance interest during
the lease term to generate a fixed periodic rate of interest for the remaining debt for each period.
Financing expenses are reflected directly to the income statement over periods. Activated leased
assets are depreciated over their estimated useful lives
Operational leasing
Leases where the leaseholder holds all risks and benefits of the leased asset are classified as
operating leases. Operational rent payments are recorded in the income statement as a straight line
expense over the lease maturity.
Segment reporting of financial information
The Company has identified operating segments based on internal reports that are regularly audited
according to the authority governing their operations. The authority to take decisions of the Group is
the general manager and the Board of Directors.
The Company's decision-making authority analyse the results and activities of groups of customers
with different risks and benefits, in order to make decisions about the resources allocated to the
divisions and to evaluate the performance of the divisions. The distribution of the company on the
basis of customer groups is as follows: Domestic market, foreign market and other. Certain assets and
liabilities, income and expenses are not included in the segments because they are centrally managed
at the group level.
Share capital and dividends
Ordinary shares are classified as capital. Dividends distributed over ordinary shares are recorded by
being deducted from accumulated profits during the period in which they are declared.

(33)

(Convenience translation of the consolidated financial statements originally issued in Turkish)

Ege Profil Ticaret ve Sanayi Anonim Şirketi and its Subsidiaries
Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended December 31, 2017 (continued)
(Currency – In Turkish Lira (“TL”), unless otherwise indicated)

2.

Presentation of the financial statements (continued)

Share premiums
Share premium represents differences resulting from the sale of the Company’s subsidiaries and
associates’ shares at a price exceeding the face values of those shares or differences between the
face values and the fair value of shares issued for acquired companies.
Treasury shares
In case the Company obtains its own shares, the cost amounts including the parts exceeding the
nominal values of these shares are deducted from equity and presented as "Treasury shares". Profits
or losses from the Group's transactions related to shares that have been recovered in this manner are
also recognized under equity.
Subsequent events
Subsequent events and announcements related to net profit or even declared after other selective
financial information has been publicly announced; include all events that take place between the
balance sheet date and the date when the balance sheet is authorized for issue.
In the case that events requiring an adjustment to the financial statements occur subsequent to the
balance sheet date, the Group makes the necessary corrections on the consolidated financial
statements. Post period end events that are not adjusting events are disclosed in the notes when
material.
Statement of cash flow
Cash flows during the period are classified and reported as operating, investing and financing activities
in the consolidated statement of cash flows.
Cash flows from operating activities represent cash flows related to the Group's core business
activities.
Cash flows arising from investment activities represent the cash flows that are used in or provided by
the investing activities (direct investments and financial investments) of the Group
Cash flows arising from financing activities represent the cash proceeds from the financing activities of
the Group and the repayments of these funds.
Offsetting
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the statement of financial
position when there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognized amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis or realize the asset and settle the liabilities simultaneously.
2.4 Changes in accounting policies, accounting estimates and errors
The Group has applied its accounting policies consistent with the previous year. Significant changes in
accounting policies and significant accounting errors identified are applied retrospectively and the prior
period financial statements are restated. Changes in the accounting estimates are applied
prospectively, both in the period in which the change is made and in the future if the changes are
related to future periods in the current period in which the change is related.
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2.5 Comparative information and restatement of prior period financial statements
The financial statements of the Group are prepared comparatively with the previous period in order to
enable the determination of the financial position and performance evaluations.
On June 21, 2017, the Company acquired 87.60% of Pimaş from Deceuninck N.V., its main
shareholder, in return of a consideration amounting to TL 85.400.364. This acquisition was treated as
a "Business combination between entities under common control" and is accounted using pooling of
interest method. For this reason, the consolidated statement of financial position as at December 31,
2016 and the consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year ended December 31, 2016 have
been restated to include the financial statements of Pimaş, the entity under common control.
Accordingly, Pimaş's assets and liabilities are recorded at its carrying cost as of December 31, 2016,
and the difference between the amount paid and the net asset value is accounted under "The impact
of business combinations of the entities under common control.
Consolidated and reported consolidated statement of financial position dated December 31, 2016,
considering the pooling of interest method under Pimaş's business combination subject to under
common control during the preparation of the Group's consolidated financial statements as of
December 31, 2016. In this context, the statement of profit and loss and other comprehensive income
and statement of cash flows of Pimaş for the period 1 January - December 31, 2016 has been
consolidated for the comparative presentation of the financial statements of the Group for the year
ended December 31, 2017.

35.101.629
(4.560.583)

Restated
January 1–
December 31, 2016
730.624.740
(517.258.433)

182.825.261

30.541.046

213.366.307

Operating profit
Operating income before financing income /
(expenses)
Profit / (loss) before tax
Profit (loss) from continuing operations
for the period
Profit (loss) from discontinued operations
for the period

75.933.033

(131.297)

75.801.736

75.567.050
50.227.293

549.734
63.621

76.116.784
50.290.914

60.346.312

(29.542)

60.316.770

-

(172.992)

(172.992)

Net profit (loss) for the period

60.346.312

(202.534)

60.143.778

Revenue
Cost of sales (-)

Previously reported
January 1–
December 31, 2016
695.523.111
(512.697.850)

Business
combination
effect

Gross profit
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Net profit (loss) for the period
Cash flows from operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash
equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of
the period
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the
period

Previously
reported
January 1–
December 31,
2016
60.346.312
113.904.158
(125.904.385)
13.142.358

Business
combination
effect

(202.534)
20.130.250
(8.910.458)
10.083.928

Restated
January 1–
December 31,
2016
60.143.778
134.034.408
(134.814.843)
23.226.286

289.080

16.188.853

16.477.933

91.327.968

1.956.089

93.284.057

91.617.048

18.144.942

109.761.990

The Group's consolidated statement of financial position as at December 31, 2016 include the
following reclassifications:
-

Sales premium costing amounting to TL 3.326.845 in "Other current assets" is classified under
"Trade receivables" item.
The amount of TL 796.369 reported in "Treasury shares" accounts is classified as being offset
from "Restricted reserves".
"Unused vacation allowance" amounting to TL 1.382.576 presented under "Short-term
allowances for employee benefits" has been classified under the item "Long-term allowance
for employee benefits.

2.6 Significant judgments, assumptions and estimates
In the preparation of consolidated financial statements, the Group management is required to make
assumptions and estimates that determine the amount of assets and liabilities reported, probable
contingent liabilities and commitments as of the reporting date and income and expense amounts in
the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Estimates are regularly reviewed,
restated and reflected in profit or loss and other comprehensive income in the period in which they are
incurred.
Significant estimates used in the preparation of these financial statements and the significant
judgments with the most significant effect on amounts recognized in the financial statements are as
follows:
a) Allowance for doubtful receivables is an estimated amount that the Group’s management
believes to reflect for possible future losses on existing receivables that have collection risk
due to current economic conditions. When assessed for impairment of receivables the past
performance of borrowers, credits on the market and revised conditions other than related
party are considered. Provision for doubtful receivables as of the reporting date is reflected in
Note 7.
b) Group management has used significant assumptions regarding the technical team's
experience, especially in determining the useful economic life of machine equipment.
Depreciation and amortization of tangible and intangible assets are accounted by taking into
consideration the economic lives stated in Note 2.3 (Note 12 and 13).
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c) Impairment of inventories, inventories are examined physically and how past has come, the
availability of technical personnel is determined in accordance with their opinions and
provision is made for the items that are estimated to be unavailable. Inventory price lists after
discount is used to calculate impairment for inventories. In such cases that sales price cannot
be predicted, inventory aging and physical status are considered together with technical
personnel’s opinion. As a result of these studies, the reserve for inventories that are less than
the net realizable cost value is allocated in Note 9.
d) The Group conducts an assessment regarding the existence of any impairment indication
related to its non-current assets held for sale at each reporting date; uses independent
valuation studies for the owner occupied land and buildings. As a result of the evaluations
made the Group management has concluded that there is no impairment indicator related to
its non-financial assets.
e) Deferred tax assets are recognized if they are more likely to benefit from temporary
differences and from accumulated losses by generating future taxable profits. It is necessary
to make significant estimates and assessments of the taxable profits that may arise in the
future when the amount of deferred tax assets to be recorded is determined. The Group
management determines the amount of taxable profits by making profit or loss projections for
the 3 years that are determined as the foreseeable future when deferred tax is recognized for
tax benefits. In addition, the Group's management recognizes its tax assets and liabilities by
making all necessary assessments based on the opinions of the tax advisors in the framework
of the applicable tax laws in the countries where they operate. Explanations regarding such
tax assets and liabilities are presented in Note 27.
f)

Retirement pay liability is determined by using actuarial assumptions (discount rates,
future salary increases and employee turnover rates). Due to these plans are long-term, these
assumptions contain significant uncertainties. Provisions for benefits provided to employees
are included in Note 24 and Note 17.

g) When allocating provision for legal risks, the probabilities of failure in the cases and the
possible liabilities to be arisen in the case of failure are evaluated by the management through
begin counselled by legal advisors of the Company or the subsidiaries. The management
determines the amount of the provisions based on their best estimates and recorded
provisions in Note 14.
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3.

Segment reporting

The Company's operations in Turkey, established manufacturing all kinds of plastic pipes and spare
parts with all kinds of profiles and plastics and is selling. In addition, the Company's branch in India
and its affiliated subsidiaries in Chile are similar in terms of business scope, product quality and
economic characteristics, production processes, classification of customers according to their risks
and methods used in the distribution of products. As an external market, by geographical segments.
Due to these reasons, the operations of the Company are accepted as two business divisions in the
form of internal market and foreign market and the results of the Company, the determination of the
resources to be allocated to these activities and the evaluation of the performance of these activities
are evaluated in this frame.
Segment reporting for the period ended December 31, 2017 is as follows:

Revenue
Cost of Sales (-)
GROSS PROFIT/(LOSS)
General administrative expenses (-)
Selling,marketing and distribution expenses(-)
Research and development expenses (-)
Other income from operating activities
Other expense from operating activities (-)
OPERATING PROFIT/(LOSS)
Income from investing activities
Expense from investing activities (-)
OPERATING PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE
FINANCIAL EXPENSES
Financial Income
Financial expense (-)
PROFIT/LOSS BEFORE TAX FROM
CONTINUING OPERATIONS
Tax expense/income from continuing
operations
Current tax income (expense)
Deferred tax (expense) income
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE PERIOD FROM
CONTINUING OPERATIONS
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE PERIOD FROM
DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE PERIOD
(*)
(**)
(***)

Domestic
market (*)

Foreign
market (**)

Joint (***)

Total

777.427.195
(585.676.800)
191.750.395
(39.874.196)
151.876.199
-

141.444.393
(82.257.072)
59.187.321
(23.148.247)
36.039.074
-

(35.882.074)
(42.431.671)
(1.445.883)
71.638.476
(67.290.242)
(75.411.394)
9.066.086
(2.523.484)

918.871.588
(667.933.872)
250.937.716
(35.882.074)
(105.454.114)
(1.445.883)
71.638.476
(67.290.242)
112.503.879
9.066.086
(2.523.484)

151.876.199
-

36.039.074
-

(68.868.792)
12.553.270
(58.501.472)

119.046.481
12.553.270
(58.501.472)

151.876.199

36.039.074

(114.816.994)

73.098.279

-

-

(6.242.933)
(629.565)
(5.613.368)

(6.242.933)
(629.565)
(5.613.368)

151.876.199

36.039.074

(121.059.927)

66.855.346

151.876.199

36.039.074

287.862
(120.772.065)

287.862
67.143.208

Turkey
EU countries, Middle-East countries, Turkic Republics, African countries, Other Asian countries and other
countries
Unallocated Income/Expense
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Segment reporting for the period ended December 31, 2016 is as follows:

Revenue
Cost of Sales (-)
GROSS PROFIT/(LOSS)
General administrative expenses (-)
Selling,marketing and distribution
expenses(-)
Research and development expenses (-)
Other income from operating activities
Other expenses from operating activities (-)
OPERATING PROFIT/(LOSS)
Income from investing activities
Expense from investing activities (-)
OPERATING PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE
FINANCIAL EXPENSES
Financial income
Financial expense (-)
PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX FROM
CONTINUING OPERATIONS
Tax expense/income from continuing
operations
Current tax income (expense)
Deferred tax (expense) income
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE PERIOD FROM
CONTINUING OPERATIONS
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE PERIOD FROM
DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE PERIOD
(*)
(**)
(***)

Domestic
market (*)
634.451.100
(454.371.936)
170.941.781
(12.577.388)

Foreign
market (**)
96.173.640
(62.886.497)
42.424.526
(17.868)

Joint (***)
(42.371.482)

Total
730.624.740
(517.258.433)
213.366.307
(54.966.738)

(49.196.173)
(131.571)
5.239.317
(5.680.767)
108.595.199
-

(19.768.271)
20.344
3.318.375
25.977.106
-

(26.440.815)
(1.119.216)
50.701.706
(39.540.762)
(58.770.569)
2.233.707
(1.918.659)

(95.405.259)
(1.250.787)
55.961.367
(41.903.154)
75.801.736
2.233.707
(1.918.659)

108.595.199

25.977.106

(58.455.521)

76.116.784

1.322.391
-

-

6.501.537
(33.649.798)

7.823.928
(33.649.798)

109.917.590

25.977.106

(85.603.782)

50.290.914

(70.359)
(70.359)
-

-

10.096.215
(4.727.668)
14.823.883

10.025.856
(4.798.027)
14.823.883

109.847.231

25.977.106

(75.507.567)

60.316.770

109.847.231

25.977.106

(172.992)
(75.680.559)

(172.992)
60.143.778

Turkey
EU countries, Middle-East countries, Turkic Republics, African countries, Other Asian countries and other
countries
Unallocated income/expense
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4.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents is as follows:

Cash
Banks
- TL demand deposits
- Foreign currency demand deposits
- TL time deposits
- Foreign currency time deposits
Cheques at collection (*)
Other (**)

(*)
(**)

December 31, 2017

December 31, 2016

15.063

17.658

5.255.357
740.623
15.436.000
9.384.436
25.208.924
859.087

2.582.576
52.945.343
36.296.293
17.627.351
292.769

56.899.490

109.761.990

Represent the cheques due as of reporting date and deposited to banks for collection and the
cheques are collected in the subsequent period.
It refers to the assets held by brokerage houses regarding the liquidity provision transactions
conducted by the Company through the purchase and sale of its own shares in the Exchange
under the CMB regulations.

As of December 31, 2017, the interest rate range of the TL time deposits in banks are 9,50% - 14,75%
(December 31, 2016: 8,25% - 10,4%) and their maturity periods are within 1-3 days.
As of December 31, 2017, the interest rates of foreign currency time deposits in banks are 0,10% 2,50% (December 31, 2016: 0,9% - 0,10%) and their maturity dates are within 1-3 days.
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5.

Financial liabilities

Short term bank borrowings are as follows:
December 31, 2017
Foreign
currency amount
Short-term borrowings

TL amount

Interest rate (%)

December 31, 2016
Foreign
currency amount

63.125.545
75.754
3.000.000
60.000.000

TL (free of interest)
TL (***)
TL (*****)
Interest accrual

75.754
3.000.000
60.000.000
49.791

36.000.000
20.000.000
4.545.454

TL (***)
TL (**)
Euro (*)
Euro (***)
Interest accrual

36.000.000
20.000.000
20.524.998
3.529.308

Interest rate (%)

59.620.731

6,59
12,10-12,50

70.665
4.500.000
55.000.000

80.054.306

Current portion of long term loans

TL amount

70.665
4.500.000
55.000.000
50.066

6,59
9,35-10,60

64.152.968
6,25-13,95
14,60
3,17

27.283.788
10.000.000
4.000.000
2.272.727

143.179.851

27.283.788
10.000.000
14.839.600
8.431.590
3.597.990

6,25-13,00
14,50
2,05
3,17

123.773.699

Long term bank borrowings are as follows:
December 31, 2017
Foreign
currency amount

TL amount

19.181.819
18.000.000
30.000.000

86.615.504
18.000.000
30.000.000

Euro (***) (**)
TL (***) (**)
TL (**)

134.615.504
(*)
(**)
(***)
(****)
(*****)

Interest payable at the end of the period; fixed interest rate.
Interest payable every three months; fixed interest rate.
Interest payable every six months; fixed interest rate
Interest payable at the end of the period, floating interest rate
Interest payable in advance; fixed interest rate
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December 31, 2016

Interest rate (%)

Foreign
currency amount

TL amount

0,75-3,17
13,68
14,60

22.727.273
23.845.710
-

84.315.910
23.845.710
108.161.620

Interest rate (%)
3,17
6,25-13,95
-
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Financial liabilities (continued)

The repayment schedule of the Group’s long term bank borrowings as of December 31, 2017 and
2016 is as follows:

1 year and over
2 year and over
3 year and over
4 year and over

December 31, 2017

December 31, 2016

62.524.997
26.524.998
20.524.998
25.040.511

40.708.890
16.863.180
16.863.180
33.726.370

134.615.504

108.161.620

There is no guarantee given by the Group for the short and long borrowings given as of December 31,
2017 and 2016.
6.

Derivative instruments

The Company has made forward exchange contracts during the period for hedging risks that may
arise upon foreign currency fluctuations.
As of December 31, 2017, the total nominal value of unfunded forward foreign exchange contracts and
options is USD 22.063.885 (December 31, 2016 and January 1, 2016: USD 33.253.036 and USD
18.015.863), Euro 7.500.000 (December 31, 2016 8.000.000 Euro) and 4.196.555.000 Chilean Pesos
(December 31, 2016 and January 1, 2016: 3.976.063.300 Chile Pesos).
As a result of the fair value measurement of the foreign currency purchase / sale agreements that are
not yet outstanding, the Group has recorded a liability for derivative financial instruments amounting to
TL 3.974.203 in the consolidated financial statements as of December 31, 2017. (December 31, 2016,
the Group has recorded a liability for derivative instruments amounting to TL 753.449 and has
recorded an asset for derivative instruments amounting to TL 6.941.547)
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7.

Trade receivables and payables

Short-term trade receivables are as follows:
December 31, 2017 December 31, 2016
Trade receivables from related parties (Note 29)

Trade receivables
Cheques and notes receivable
Rediscount on trade receivables (-)
Doubtful receivables
Provisions for doubtful receivables (-)

38.783.850

17.854.381

38.783.850

17.854.381

41.200.332
421.129.267
(13.075.959)
44.370.411
(44.370.411)

26.130.753
345.228.673
(5.660.442)
50.662.329
(50.662.329)

449.253.640

365.698.984

488.037.490

383.553.365

Effective interest rates used for trade receivables are 15,284% (December 31, 2016: 11,184%) for TL,
effective Libor and Euribor rates for US Dollar and Euro.
The average maturity period for trade receivables is 164 days (December 31, 2016 – 144 days).
As of December 31, 2017 and 2016, movement of doubtful trade receivables’ provisions are as
follows:
2017

2016

Opening balance
Provisions no longer required
Current year provision expense

50.662.329
(8.425.103)
2.133.185

32.075.051

Closing balance

44.370.411

50.662.329

(6.170.174)
24.757.452

The amount of trade receivables past due but not impaired as of December 31, 2017 and 2016 is as
follows (receivables from related parties are included):
Overdue receivables with no provisions

December 31, 2017
December 31, 2016

Total

30 days
past due

30-60 days
past due

60-90 days
past due

90-180
days past due

180 days
past due

15.834.967
12.542.950

2.835.233
3.388.286

1.139.404
2.279.001

706.637
1.610.956

1.677.828
2.937.082

9.475.865
2.327.625

As the received collateral amounts meet the amount of uncollected receivables in the related Group as
of December 31, 2017 and 2016, an additional provision in the accompanying financial statements is
not reflected in these amounts.
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Trade receivables and payables (continued)

As of December 31, 2017, there is a letter of guarantee amounting to TL 86.681.046 and a note of
guarantee amounting to TL 246.523.975 and a mortgage amounting to TL 2.265.465 (Note 15).
Explanations on the credit risk management of the Group are given in Note 30.
Trade payables is as follows:
December 31, 2017 December 31, 2016
Trade payables for related parties (Note:29)

Trade payables
Notes payables
Rediscount on trade payables (-)

3.994.779

1.552.835

3.994.779

1.552.835

114.543.150
97.576.354
(2.291.877)

81.862.007
147.105.913
(1.941.738)

209.827.627

227.026.182

213.822.406

228.579.017

Effective interest rates used for trade payables are 15,284% (December 31, 2016 - 11,184%) for TL,
and Libor and Euribor rates for US Dollar and Euro.
The average maturity of trade payables is 121 days (December 31, 2016: 118 days).

8.

Other receivables and payables

The detail of short term other receivables is as follows:
December 31, 2017 December 31, 2016
Other receivables from related parties (Note 29)
Deposits and guarantees given
Due from personnel
VAT receivables
Other receivables

2.257.750
346.852
8.006
66.317

480.695
5.413
556.766
614.074

2.678.925

1.656.948

Other long term receivables from third parties is as follows:
December 31, 2017 December 31, 2016
Deposits and guarantees given
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317.175

374.256

317.175

374.256
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8.

Other receivables and payables (continued)

Other payables is as follows:
December 31, 2017 December 31, 2016
Other payables to related parties (Note 29)
Other payables

9.

41.232.359
-

86.190

41.232.359

86.190

Inventories

Inventories are as follows:
December 31, 2017 December 31, 2016
Raw materials
Semi-finished goods
Finished goods
Trade goods
Provision for impairment on inventories (-)

34.817.505
14.063.795
34.011.829
30.095.431
(4.081.147)

23.321.406
6.600.924
34.482.783
28.074.620
(6.754.398)

108.907.413

85.725.335

The movements in the provision for impairment of inventories as of December 31, 2017 and 2016 are
as follows:

Opening balance
Increase / (decrease) in the period, net
Closing balance

10.

2017

2016

6.754.398
(2.673.251)

3.619.294
3.135.104

4.081.147

6.754.398

Prepaid expenses

Short term and long term prepaid expenses are as follows:
December 31, 2017 December 31, 2016
Short term prepaid expenses:
Prepaid expense for the following months
Advances given for stock purchases
Prepaid expenses to financial institutions
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3.531.676
718.901
-

1.373.186
949.211
3.400.585

4.250.577

5.722.982
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10.

Prepaid expenses (continued)
December 31, 2017 December 31, 2016

Long term prepaid expenses:
Advances given for fixed asset purchases
Prepaid expenses for the following years

11.

2.764.236
22.337

4.834.344
25.318

2.786.573

4.859.662

Current tax assets

Current tax assets are as follows:
December 31, 2017 December 31, 2016
Prepaid taxes and funds

12.

4.840.602

1.162.354

4.840.602

1.162.354

Property, plant and equipment

The movement schedule of property, plant and equipment at December 31, 2017 is as follows:

Cost or revalued amount
Land
Land improvements
Buildings
Machinery and equipment
Vehicles
Furniture and fixtures
Construction in progress
Other tangible assets

Accumulated depreciation (-)
Land improvements
Buildings
Machinery and equipment
Vehicles
Furniture and fixtures
Other tangible assets

Net book value

January 1,
2017

Additions

Disposals

Revaluation

December 31,
2017

77.746.838
3.702.036
137.467.941
216.740.692
669.569
12.086.182
7.478.833
1.296.606

632.100
2.136.385
31.650.776
99.112
3.959.058
572.496
-

(82.343)
(222.846)
(19.675.038)
(97.150)
(258.995)
(1.064.238)

30.907.650
676.380
-

108.654.488
4.251.793
140.057.860
228.716.430
671.531
15.786.245
8.051.329
232.368

457.188.697

39.049.927

(21.400.610)

31.584.030

506.422.044

(1.889.209)
(6.982.495)
(123.720.376)
(480.928)
(7.872.235)
(1.246.102)

(120.633)
(3.639.396)
(15.518.655)
(58.517)
(1.267.307)
(13.056)

82.343
201.033
16.980.516
85.068
250.472
1.063.782

-

(1.927.499)
(10.420.858)
(122.258.515)
(454.377)
(8.889.070)
(195.376)

(142.191.345)

(20.617.564)

18.663.214

-

(144.145.695)

314.997.352

362.276.349

The company's land and buildings were revalued by a valuation company licensed by the CMB in
2017. The valuation is based on the relevant domestic market prices according to equivalent of
precedent and cost model. The accumulated depreciation of the revalued buildings is netted against
the carrying amount and the net amount is revalued. The valuation difference is accounted for as an
increase in "property, plant and equipment revaluation fund", which is included in equity under other
comprehensive income, net of deferred tax.
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12.

Tangible assets (continued)

The movement schedule of property, plant and equipment at December 31, 2016 is as follows:
Cost or revalued amount

January 1,
2016

Additions

Transfers

Disposals

Revaluation

December 31,
2016

Land
Land improvements
Buildings
Machinery and equipment
Vehicles
Furniture and fixtures
Other tangible assets
Construction in progress

55.556.592
4.069.856
29.927.187
201.382.369
1.931.551
17.549.041
1.296.606
44.672.203

731.000
40.000
42.984
130.189.069

11.974.646
(126.819)
106.043.077
25.304.751
(1.249.982)
(4.523.782)
(166.280.571)

(241.001)
(9.986.428)
(12.000)
(982.061)
(1.101.868)

9.484.600
1.497.677
-

77.746.838
3.702.036
137.467.941
216.740.692
669.569
12.086.182
1.296.606
7.478.833

356.385.405

131.003.053

(28.858.680)

(12.323.358)

10.982.277

457.188.697

Accumulated depreciation (-)
Land improvements
(2.015.565)
Buildings
(4.721.006)
Machinery and equipment
(141.337.338)
Vehicles
(1.755.128)
Furniture and fixtures
(15.254.379)
Other tangible assets
(1.232.850)
Sub total
(166.316.266)

(125.958)
(1.248.551)
(12.543.383)
(106.516)
(746.096)
(13.056)
(14.783.560)

138.344
(1.012.938)
21.681.949
1.353.604
6.697.917
(196)
28.858.680

113.970
8.478.396
27.112
1.430.323
10.049.801

-

(1.889.209)
(6.982.495)
(123.720.376)
(480.928)
(7.872.235)
(1.246.102)
(142.191.345)

Net book value

190.069.139

314.997.352

December 31, 2017

December 31, 2016

836.605.087

727.334.178

Total amount of insurance on assets
There are no mortgages or pledges on the tangible assets of the Group.
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13.

Intangible assets

The movement schedule of intangible assets as of December 31, 2017 and 2016 is as follows:
Cost
License
Trademark
Industrial design
Dealer list
Rights and other

Accumulated amortization (-)
Industrial design
Dealer list
Rights and other

Sub total
Goodwill
Net book value

Cost
License
Trademark
Industrial design
Dealer list
Rights and other

Accumulated amortization (-)
Industrial design
Dealer list
Rights and other

Opening
January 31, 2017

Additions

Disposals

Closing
December 31,2017

859.735
3.987.406
71.645
2.274.223
1.832.079

54.682

(968.239)

859.735
3.987.406
71.645
2.274.223
918.522

9.025.088

54.682

(968.239)

8.111.531

(71.645)
(1.250.823)
(1.761.501)

(113.711)
(92.459)

941.961

(71.645)
(1.364.534)
(911.999)

(3.083.969)

(206.170)

941.961

(2.348.178)

5.941.119
773.352

-

(117.470)

6.714.471

655.882
6.419.235

Opening
January 31, 2016

Additions

Disposals

859.735
3.987.406
71.645
2.274.223
1.903.662

12.080

859.735
3.987.406
71.645
2.274.223
1.832.079

9.096.671

12.080

(83.663)
(83.663)

(71.645)
(1.137.112)
(1.690.976)

(113.711)
(153.703)

83.178

(71.645)
(1.250.823)
(1.761.501)

(2.899.733)

(267.414)

83.178

(3.083.969)

Sub total

6.196.938

Goodwill

773.352

Net book value

5.763.353

6.970.290
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Closing
December 31,2016

9.025.088

5.941.119
-

-

773.352
6.714.471
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13.

Intangible assets (continued)

Goodwill
The goodwill amounts as of December 31, 2017 2016 are as follows:

Winsa
Deceuninck Brasil

14.

December 31, 2017

December 31, 2016

655.882
-

655.882
117.470

655.882

773.352

Provisions, contingent assets and liabilities

Other short-term provisions as of December 31, 2017 and 2016 are as follows:
December 31, 2017 December 31, 2016
Warranty provision
Provision for litigation (*)
Provision for tax penalty (**)

1.262.282
3.634.834
536.260

983.800
4.013.480
536.260

Total

5.433.376

5.533.540

(*)

(**)

As of December 31, 2017 , the majority of the litigation provisions relate to labor receivables of workers
who have been suspended from the closure of the factory located in Gebze due to the relocation of Pimas
Company headquarters.
In accordance with tax inspection reports issued by the Ministry of Finance Revenue Administration within
the scope of tax inspection for 2007, tax penalty notifications issued were communicated to the Company
within 2011. Accordingly, the Company was imposed with principal tax and tax loss penalty communicated
on 2 April 2012 amounting to a total of TL 3.605.914. The Company initiated a tax case at Izmir 4th Tax
Court against tax penalty on 30 April 2012. As a result of the first hearing held on 6 December 2012, a
portion of TL 2.358.150 out of the tax penalties communicated to the Company was reversed by the court.

Warranty provision
2017

2016

983.800
278.482

937.362
46.438

1.262.282

983.800

2017

2016

Opening balance
Current year provision expense /(cancellation)

4.013.480
(378.646)

1.069.554
2.943.926

Closing balance

3.634.834

4.013.480

Opening balance
Current year provision expense, net
Closing balance
Provision for litigation
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15.

Export commitments, operational leasings, guarantees, pledges and mortgages

As of December 31, 2017 and 2016, the detail of guarantee, pledge and mortgage position chart of the Group is as follows:

TL equivalent

December 31, 2017
Foreign currency

TL equivalent

December 31, 2016
Foreign currency

Guarantee letters received
Euro
USD
TL

86.681.046

86.681.046

6.178.294
1.618.832
47.414.200

1.665.353
460.000
47.414.200

Guarantee notes received
Euro
TL

135.465
3.130.000

30.000
3.130.000

111.297
3.992.118

30.000
3.992.118

Mortgages received
Euro
TL

653.135
245.870.840

144.643
245.870.840

480.406
229.824.724

129.493
229.824.724

Total guarantees and mortgages received (*)

336.470.486

Guarantees given
Euro
USD
TL

326.238
65.396.033
24.689.990

Total guarantees given

90.412.261

(*)

289.619.871

72.248
17.337.690
24.689.990

55.988.948

55.988.948

55.988.948

The guarantees and mortgages received represent the guarantees that are received from the company’s customers in the context of credit risk
management related to the company’s commercial activities.
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15.

Export commitments, operational leasings, guarantees, pledges and mortgages
(continued)

As of December 31, 2017 and 2016, guarantee, pledge and mortgage position chart of the Group is as
follows:

a. Total amount of guarantees, pledges and mortgages given for
the Company’s own legal personality
b. Total amount of guarantees, pledges and mortgages given on
behalf of fully consolidated companies
c. Total amount of guarantees, pledges and mortgages given for
continuation of its economic activities on behalf of third parties
d. Total amount of other guarantees, pledges and mortgages
given
Total

December 31,
2017

December 31,
2016

90.412.261

55.988.948

-

-

-

-

-

-

90.412.261

55.988.948

As of December 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016, the Company and its subsidiaries have no
guarantees, pledges or mortgages received from or given to related parties. As of December 31, 2017,
the other guarantees, pledges and mortgages given by the Company and its subsidiaries are
equivalent to 0% of their equity (December 31, 2016 – 0%).
Group's export commitments are as follows:
The Company is a member of Türkiye İhracat Kredi Bankası A.Ş. (Eximbank) and Türkiye Cumhuriyeti
Ziraat Bankası A.Ş.





Loan agreements amounting to TL 9.000.0000 with a maturity of 60 months and used in July
2013 amounted to Euro 3.600.000
Loan agreements amounting to TL 9.000.000 with a maturity of 12 months used in 2017
amounted to USD 2.507.462
Loan agreements amounting to TL 30.000.000 with a maturity of 18 months used in 2017
amounted to USD 7.878.151.
Loan agreements amounting to TL 55.000.000 with a maturity of 8 months used in 2017
amounted to USD 15.329.811.

The Group's operational leasing transactions are as follows:
Operating leases of the Company and its subsidiaries amounting to Euro 10.229.935 USD 23.505.462
and TL 9.617.563 (December 31, 2016 - Euro 3.449.286, Euro 14.865.462 and Euro 8.064.136), car,
forklift and warehouse rentals, the floors vary between 1 and 4 years. Operating lease payments
amounting to EUR 3.712.367, USD 8.640.000 and TL 1.603.132 are for 1 to 9 years.
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16.

Deferred income
December 31, 2017 December 31, 2016

Advances taken (*)
Other

128.151.335
-

94.611.001
104.812

Total

128.151.335

94.715.813

(*)

Consists of checks and notes the Group has received for sales to its customers in subsequent periods.

17. Employee benefit obligations and provisions
As of December 31, 2017 and 2016, the details of short term provision for employee benefits are as
follows:
December 31, 2017

December 31, 2016

Social security premiums payable
Wage accruals
Taxes and funds payable

2.644.040
1.743.908
1.270.832

2.846.686
1.492.760
1.149.670

Total

5.658.780

5.489.116

As of December 31, 2017 and 2016, the details of long term provision for employee benefits are as
follows:

Provision for unused vacation rights
Provision for employment termination benefits
Total

December 31, 2017

December 31, 2016

1.811.773
9.881.880

1.382.576
4.772.881

11.693.653

6.155.457

Provisions for employment termination benefit
There is no retirement plan of the company except the legal obligation as described below.
Under Turkish Labour Law, the Group is required to pay termination benefits to each employee who
has completed one year of service and whose employment is terminated without due cause, is called
up for military service, dies or who retires after completing 25 years of service (20 years for women)
and achieves the retirement age (58 for women and 60 for men).
The amount payable consists of one month’s salary limited to a maximum of TL 4.732,48 (full TL) for
each year of service as of December 31, 2017 (December 31, 2016: TL 4.297,21 (full TL).
The liability is not funded, as there is no funding requirement. The provision has been calculated by
estimating the present value of the future probable obligation of the Group arising from the retirement
of the employees.
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17.

Employee benefit obligations and provisions (continued)

TAS 19 “Employee Benefits” requires actuarial valuation methods to be developed to estimate the
enterprise's obligation under defined benefit plans. Accordingly the following actuarial assumptions
were used in the calculation of the total liability:
December 31, 2017

December 31, 2016

11,00
7,00
3,74
94,76

10,77
10,00
4,50
81,19

Discount rate (%)
Expected rate of increase in wages (%)
Net discount rate (%)
Turnover rate to estimate the probability of retirement (%)

The principal assumption is that the maximum liability for each year of service will increase in line with
inflation. Thus, the discount rate applied represents the expected real rate after adjusting for the
anticipated effects of future inflation. As the maximum liability is revised annually, the maximum
amount of TL 5.001,76 (full TL) which is effective from 1 January 2018 (1 January 2017: TL 4.426,16
(full TL) has been taken into consideration in calculating the reserve for employee termination benefit
of the Group.
As of December 31, 2017 and 2016, movements in the provision for employee termination benefits are
as follows:
2017

2016

At the beginning of the year
Interest cost
Service cost
Actuarial (gain) / loss
Paid in the current year

4.772.881
501.153
625.165
4.891.736
(909.055)

8.152.043
855.964
556.047
(175.391)
(4.615.782)

At the end of year

9.881.880

4.772.881

The sensitivity analyzes of the significant assumptions used in calculation of retirement pay liability as
of December 31, 2017 are as follows:

Sensitivity level
Rate (%)
Change in the retirement pay liability (TL)

Turnover rate to estimate
Net discount rate the probability of retirement
%0,5 point
%0,5 point
%0,5 point
%0,5 point
decrease
increase
Decrease
increase
3,24
525.912

4,24
(1.004.657)

94,26
(94.589)

95,26
104.539

As of December 31, 2017 and 2016, movements in the provision for personnel bonus and unused
vacation are as follows:
2017

2016

At the beginning of the year
Current year provision/(cancellation), net

1.382.576
429.197

1.865.789
(483.213)

At the end of year

1.811.773

1.382.576
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18.

Other assets and liabilities

Other current assets
December 31, 2017 December 31, 2016
Deferred VAT
Other advances
Job advances
Other

1.736.074
768.238
553.941
-

12.512.682
181.954
465.310
248.562

Total

3.058.253

13.408.508

Other short term liabilities
December 31, 2017 December 31, 2016
Taxes and funds payable
Provisions for expenses

2.406.508
609.765

1.496.309
674.165

Total

3.016.273

2.170.474

19.

Equity

(a)

Paid in capital:

As of December 31, 2017, and 2016, the Company's paid in capital and shareholding structure are as
follows:
December 31, 2017
TL Share (%)

December 31, 2016
TL Share (%)

Deceuninck NV
Public owned

77.641.840
3.338.953

95,88 77.641.840
4,12 1.958.160

97,54
2,46

Paid-in capital as stated in the legal books

80.980.793

100 79.600.000

100

7.840.703

7.840.703

88.821.496

87.440.703

Inflation adjustment difference
Total

The upper limit of registered share capital of the Company as of December 31, 2017 and December
31, 2016 is TL 120.000.000. As of December 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016, the historic value of
the Company’s paid-in capital is TL 80.980.793 (December 31, 2016 – TL 79.600.000) consisting of
8.980.793.000 shares ( December 31, 2016 – 7.960.000.000) of Kr 1 nominal value each.
For the purpose of obtaining a refinance loan of Euro 140.000.000, the major shareholder Deceuninck
NV acting in the capacity of loan receiver has pledged in favour of Fortis Bank NV/SA acting in the
capacity of guarantee representative the entire number of its 58.100.520 shares of TL 0.01 nominal
value each representing 97,5382% of the Company’s share capital as per the Share Pledge
Agreement signed on 16 August 2012 upon amendment dated 16 July 2012 made on the Loan
Agreement dated 11 September 2009.
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19.

Equity (continued)

Extraordinary General Meeting regarding the merger process of the Company and Pimaş was held on
December 7, 2017. Consolidation of all the assets and liabilities of Pimaş, which is a subsidiary of the
Company, as a whole through the "take over" of the Company in accordance with Article 134 of the
Turkish Commercial Code and its related articles; Acceptance of votes in the Extraordinary General
Meeting held under the provisions of Articles 19 and 20 of the Corporate Tax Law, the Communiqué
on Merger and Division (II-23.2) and the Communiqué on Important Qualifications and the Declaration
on the Declaration of Property (II-23.1) lt; / RTI & gt; Registered on December 25, 2017.
Due to the merger transaction, the application made to the CMB on December 26, 2017 to increase
the Company's capital from TL 79.600.000 (seventy-nine million six hundred thousand) to TL
80.980.793 (eighty nine million nine hundred thousand nine hundred and ninety-three) and was
registered on December 28, 2017.
(b)

Treasury shares and use of the right for disposal:

Consists of the shares that the Company has taken back under the liquidity provision procedures
carried out within the framework of CMB legislation. The Company's repurchased shares are carried at
quoted market prices at the date of the transaction in the Stock Exchange Istanbul; are included in the
"treasury shares" accounts, including those that exceed the nominal amounts of the redeemed shares.
Payments amounting to TL 7.690.383 related to the Pimaş shares with nominal value of TL 1.665.378,
which were accepted in the Extraordinary General Meeting held on December 7, 2017 and which were
taken back with regard to the right of leaving the Company due to the merger of Pimaş, from the fund
of business combination effects subject to common control; the portion exceeding the nominal value of
TL 6.025.005 is accounted in retained earnings (loss) accounts
(c) Reserves on retained earnings:
Retained earnings as per the statutory financial statements, other than legal reserve requirements, are
available for distribution subject to the legal reserve requirement referred to below.
The legal reserves consist of first and second reserves, appropriated in accordance with the Turkish
Commercial Code (“TCC”). The TCC stipulates that the first legal reserve is appropriated out of
statutory profits at the rate of 5% per annum, until the total reserve reaches 20% of the Group’s paid-in
share capital. The second legal reserve is appropriated at the rate of 10% per annum of all cash
distributions in excess of 5% of the paid-in share capital. Under the TCC, the legal reserves can only
be used to offset losses and are not available for any other usage unless they exceed 50% of paid-in
share capital.
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19.

Equity (continued)

(d) Accumulated other comprehensive income and expenses not to be classified to profit or loss
Tangible assets revaluation fund
The property, plant and equipment revaluation fund is accounted for under the revaluation model in
accordance with TAS 16 for property, plant and equipment, land, land and buildings and buildings. In
accordance with the economic lives of the tangible fixed assets constituting the revaluation fund, the
amount of the fund corresponding to the depreciation of the current period is annually transferred to
the retained earnings / (loss) accounts. In the event that a tangible asset subject to revaluation is to be
derecognized, the portion of the revaluation surplus fund related to assets sold is directly transferred to
retained earnings.
Actuarial gain / (loss) fund related to defined benefit plans
TAS 19 does not permit the recognition of actuarial gain / loss recognized in the calculation of
provision for employment termination benefits in the income statement with the amendment to
"Employee Benefits". Losses and gains resulting from changes in actuarial assumptions are
accounted for under the "Actuarial Gain / (Loss) Fund Related to Defined Benefit Plans" account in
equity. The actuarial loss / gain fund is in the form of other comprehensive income / expense that will
not be reclassified to profit or loss.
(e)

Accumulated other comprehensive income and expenses to be reclassified to profit or loss

Foreign currency translation differences
Group's Turkey reporting per the financial statements of subsidiaries outside caused by the conversion
of currency and credited to shareholders' equity is comprised of foreign currency translation
differences. Foreign currency translation differences arising from the settlement of the liabilities of
Russian Enwin which are finalized in the current period are classified under financial income
(expense) accounts.
(f) Prior years' profits / (losses)
Retained earnings available for profit distribution
The net distributable profit for the period included in the statutory records as of the reporting date of
the Company and other sources subject to profit distribution are given below.

Net profit (loss) for the period
Extraordinary reserve
Special funds
Retained earnings

December 31, 2017

December 31, 2016

42.105.391
17
16.132.119
109.661.369

43.832.799
17
9.261.705
91.900.261

(g) Non-controlling interests
Consolidated subsidiaries' equity interests in the equity items are included in paid-in capital and are
presented in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position as "Non-controlling interests" in the
equity account group. The portion of the net profit or loss from the consolidated subsidiaries that is
attributable to the non-controlling interests is presented as non-controlling interests in the net profit /
(loss) after the net profit / (loss). In the current period, the non-controlling interests derived from Pimaş
have been classified into the related equity accounts after the merger of the Company as of December
31, 2017 and its subsidiary Pimaş has been completed on December 25, 2017.
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20.

Revenue and cost of sales

The details of net sales are as follows:
January 1, 2017January 1, 2016December 31, 2017 December 31, 2016
Domestic sales
Export sales

777.427.195
141.444.393

625.313.717
105.311.023

Total

918.871.588

730.624.740

January 1, 2017
December 31, 2017

January 1, 2016
December 31, 2016

Direct raw material, semi-finished good and material expenses
Direct labor cost
Amortization and depreciation expenses
Other production costs

470.765.708
8.937.579
16.641.554
78.959.629

361.476.041
5.027.781
12.670.024
72.753.728

Total cost of production

575.304.470

451.927.574

Change in semi-finished goods
Beginning of the period
End of the period

(7.462.871)
6.600.924
(14.063.795)

1.067.856
7.668.780
(6.600.924)

Change in finished goods
Beginning of the period
End of the period

470.954
34.482.783
(34.011.829)

(6.134.065)
28.348.718
(34.482.783)

Change in trade goods
Beginning of the period
Purchases
End of the period

99.621.319
28.074.620
101.642.130
(30.095.431)

70.397.068
21.392.451
77.079.237
(28.074.620)

Total

667.933.872

517.258.433

Cost of sales are as follows:
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21.

Research and development expenses; marketing, sales and distribution expenses;
general administration expenses

Research and development expenses; marketing, sales and distribution expenses; general
administration expenses are as follows:
Research and development expenses:
January 1, 2017
December 31, 2017

January 1, 2016
December 31, 2016

Personnel expenses
Other

1.379.638
66.245

1.232.384
18.403

Total

1.445.883

1.250.787

January 1, 2017
December 31, 2017

January 1, 2016
December 31, 2016

39.356.682
25.205.786
12.004.903
7.823.279
7.639.390
3.073.595
2.284.685
381.931
7.683.863

34.135.885
23.547.451
9.346.689
8.467.482
6.664.381
1.960.115
2.179.262
1.403.252
7.700.742

105.454.114

95.405.259

January 1, 2017
December 31, 2017

January 1, 2016
December 31, 2016

Personnel expenses
Consultancy services expenses
Taxes and similar expenses
Depreciation and amortization expenses
Insurance expenses
Communication expenses
Termination indemnity and annual leave expenses
Provision for doubtful receivables, net
Provision for litigation
Other expenses

13.375.488
12.648.261
1.478.399
1.108.585
946.045
574.475
145.307
5.605.514

13.959.699
12.633.034
1.557.267
420.835
758.118
383.566
224.521
18.587.278
2.450.000
3.992.420

Total

35.882.074

54.966.738

Marketing, sales and distribution expenses:

Personnel expenses
Customs and transportation expenses
Rent expenses
Dealer promotion and meeting expenses
Advertisement expenses
Depreciation and amortization expenses
Exposition, exhibition and showroom expenses
Sales premiums and commissions
Other
Total

General administrative expenses:

(58)

(Convenience translation of the consolidated financial statements originally issued in Turkish)

Ege Profil Ticaret ve Sanayi Anonim Şirketi and its Subsidiaries
Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended December 31, 2017 (continued)
(Currency – In Turkish Lira (“TL”), unless otherwise indicated)

22.

Other operating income / expenses

Other operating income
January 1, 2017December 31, 2017

January 1, 2016December 31, 2016

Foreign exchange gains
Forward transaction profits
The bad debt provision no longer required, net
Scrap sales
Interest income
Other

27.676.081
27.444.695
6.291.918
4.815.209
2.762.303
2.648.270

20.058.029
23.109.298
2.567.814
3.335.848
6.890.378

Total

71.638.476

55.961.367

January 1, 2017December 31, 2017

January 1, 2016December 31, 2016

Forward transaction losses
Foreign exchange losses
Interest expense
Interest cost of termination indemnity
Other

32.356.150
26.684.495
4.538.397
501.153
3.210.047

10.892.078
28.240.639
97.231
855.964
1.817.242

Total

67.290.242

41.903.154

Other operating expense

23.

Income / losses from investing activities

Income from investing activities
January 1, 2017December 31, 2017

January 1, 2016December 31, 2016

Gain from disposal of fixed assets
Interest income
Other income

5.473.904
3.592.182
-

811.812
499.865
922.030

Total

9.066.086

2.233.707

Losses from investing activities
January 1, 2017December 31, 2017

January 1, 2016December 31, 2016

Loss from disposal of fixed assets

2.523.484

1.918.659

Total

2.523.484

1.918.659
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24.

Expenses classified by nature

Depreciation and amortization expenses
January 1, 2017January 1, 2016December 31, 2017 December 31, 2016
Cost of production
General administrative expenses
Sales marketing expenses
Research and development expenses

16.641.554
1.108.585
3.073.045
550

12.670.024
420.835
1.959.494
621

Total

20.823.734

15.050.974

January 1, 2017January 1, 2016December 31, 2017 December 31, 2016
Depreciation of tangible assets (Note12)
Amortisation of intangible assets (Note13)

20.617.564
206.170

14.783.560
267.414

Total

20.823.734

15.050.974

Employee benefits
January 1, 2017January 1, 2016December 31, 2017 December 31, 2016
Wages and salaries
Social security premium expenses-employer’s share
Other social expenses
Provision for termination indemnity and unused vacation, net
Total

25.

74.371.149
6.582.438
20.580.482
646.456

73.673.267
4.990.120
16.779.993
(4.025.321)

102.180.525

91.418.059

Financial income / expenses

Financial income and expenses are as follows:
Financial income
January 1, 2017January 1, 2016December 31, 2017 December 31, 2016
Foreign exchange gains
Forward transaction income
Other
Total
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25.

Financial income / expenses (continued)

Financial expenses
January 1, 2017January 1, 2016December 31, 2017 December 31, 2016
Foreign exchange losses
Interest expense
Forward transaction losses
Other

30.260.822
22.865.534
1.626.754
3.748.362

16.108.669
14.386.623
2.691.803
462.703

Total

58.501.472

33.649.798

26.

Assets classified as held for sale and discontinued operations

Assets classified as held for sale at December 31, 2017 and 2016 are as follows:

Opening balance
Additions within the period
Disposals within the period (-)
Total

2017

31 2016

1.478.707
7.598.951
(6.291.884)

1.741.125
1.725.651
(955.616)

2.785.774

2.511.160

As of December 31, 2017 and 2016, non-current assets held for sale are lands, shops and buildings
that are taken from customers on account of receivables that are turned into doubtful receivables. The
aim of the group management is to remove the real estates in a short period of time.
Discontinued operations as of December 31, 2017
The Company management has decided to suspend the production activities as of December 14,
2015 and the sales activities as of December 20, 2015, with the anticipation that the limited liability
company ENWIN RUS, a Russian subsidiary of Rostov, Russian Federation, will continue to suffer
losses and harm.
Subsidiaries of the Company Enwin Rus Ltd.'s assets and liabilities are classified as discontinued
operations in accordance with TFRS 5 in the financial statements as of December 31, 2016. Enwin
Rus Ltd. By the end of 2017, it was liquidated and completely closed.
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26.

Non-current assets held for sale (continued)
December 31,
2017

December 31,
2016

Cash and cash equivalents

-

1.032.457

Total assets

-

1.032.457

December 31,
2017

December 31,
2016

Trade payables
Deferred income
Current period tax payable

-

2.077.830
921
243.905

Total liabilities

-

2.322.656

Assets related to discontinued operations

Liabilities related to discontinued operations

The activities of Enwin Rus Ltd. are defined as discontinued operations and all profit and loss
transactions are presented in the consolidated profit or loss table as of December 31, 2017 and 2016
in the "Discontinued operations". Enwin Rus Ltd.'s net profit after loss eliminations for the years ended
December 31, 2017 and 2016 are as follows:
December 31, 2017

December 31, 2016

Revenue
Cost of sales (-)

-

256.741
(121.928)

Gross profit

-

134.813

244.244
(149.783)

(329.744)
(81.377)
876.241
(1.090.491)

94.461

(490.558)

(169.689)
363.090

666.011
(1.803.064)
(909.803)
2.156.610

287.862

(380.804)

-

207.812

287.862

(172.992)

General administrative expenses (-)
Marketing expenses (-)
Other operating income
Other operating expenses (-)
Operating profit / (loss)
Income from investing activities
Losses from investing activities (-)
Financial expenses (-)
Financial income
Pre-tax loss from discontinued operations
Deferred tax income / (expense)
Discontinued operations term (loss)
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27.

Taxation
a) Corporation tax

Statutory corporate income tax rate in Turkey is 20 %. However, according to the Provisional Article 10
added to the Corporate Tax Law, the corporate tax rate of 20% will be applied as 22% for the
corporate earnings for the taxation periods of the years 2018, 2019 and 2020 (for the accounting
periods that start within the related year for the institutions that are designated as special accounting
period). Turkish Corporate Income Tax Law, provides reduced corporate income tax rate for the
investments made within the scope of the Investment Incentive Certificate The rate of corporation tax
in Chile is 25.5%.
As of December 31, 2017 and 2016 are payable in Turkey netted off with current tax liabilities prepaid
taxes are shown below:

Current period corporation tax
Taxes prepaid during the period (-)
Corporate taxes payable (prepaid taxes)

December 31, 2017

December 31, 2016

(4.840.602)

4.798.027
(5.960.381)

(4.840.602)

(1.162.354)

The reconciliation between the tax deduction calculated by applying the statutory tax rate on income
before tax as of December 31, 2017 and 2016 and the total tax provision in the comprehensive
income statement is as follows:

Pretax income from continuing operations
The current effective statutory tax rate
Calculated tax income (expense)
The effect of non-deductible expenses
The effect of deduction / exception of income
Tax advantage effect under investment incentive exemption, net
Effect of tax losses on deferred tax in the current period
The effect of changes in the ratio of corporate tax with tax
exception, net
Effect of other adjustments
Taxation income (expense) reported in the
statement of profit or loss
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January 1December 31, 2017

January 1December 31, 2016

73.098.279
%20
(14.619.656)

50.290.914
%20
(10.058.183)

(734.102)
663.948
530.877
2.084.471

(379.501)
451.296
18.625.472
-

5.320.201

-

511.328

1.386.772

(6.242.933)
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27.

Taxation (continued)
b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities
Deferred tax assets /
(liabilities)
December 31,
December 31,
2017
2016

The effect of investment incentive allowance application (*)
Financial losses (**)
Provision for termination indemnity
Provision for doubtful receivables
Provision for litigation and guarantee
Rediscount on receivables (payables), net
Provision for unused vacation
Effect of consolidation elimination adjustments
Tangible and intangible assets
Other temporary differences
Deferred tax asset/(liability), net

13.377.877
2.084.471
1.976.376
856.671
726.967
647.077
362.355
538.615
(23.317.945)
3.279.653

12.847.212
954.576
3.561.061
999.456
(62.007)
276.515
710.664
(12.778.090)
335.189

532.117

6.844.576

The balance sheet presentation of deferred tax assets and liabilities is as follows:
December 31,
2017

December 31,
2016

Deferred tax assets
Deferred tax liability

532.117
-

9.373.946
(2.529.370)

Deferred tax asset/(liability), net

532.117

6.844.576

(*)

The Company has received an Investment Incentive Certificate for Menemen plant investments amounting
to TL 174 million in October 2015 within the scope of the decision of the Council of Ministers on State Aid
in Investment regulating investment incentives. Investment incomes of 127 million TL have been made
within the scope of this incentive, which has a contribution rate of 20%. The Company has determined the
investment incentive advantage with the amount of the intent planned to be achieved within the 3 years
that it set as the foreseeable future and recognized deferred tax asset amounting to TL 13.377.877
(December 31, 2016: TL 12.847.212) as investment incentives as of 31 December, 2017.
In 2017, the Company has received an additional 193 million TL Investment Incentive Certificate. In this
incentive, which has an investment contribution rate of 20%, approximately 12 million TL investment
expenditure has been made and all the advantages obtained by this expenditure have been used in the
current period tax.

(**)

Details as stated in Note 2.5, by the end of 2017, the merger has been completed by taking over all the
assets and liabilities of Pimaş as a whole; Pimaş's tax base consists of the tax losses amounting to TL
9.474.870 in the current period up to the merger date for the fiscal year 2017. The Company recognized a
22% deferred tax asset from the related tax losses under the assumption that it will be able to deduct the
profit from financial profit to be obtained in 2018.
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27.

Taxation (continued)

The movement of the deferred tax assets/(liabilities), net for the years ended December 31, 2017 and
2016 are as follows:
2017

2016

6.844.576
(5.613.368)
(702.311)
3.220

(7.170.464)
14.823.883
(803.247)
(5.596)

532.117

6.844.576

January 1 –
December 31,
2017

January 1 –
December 31,
2016

67.143.208

60.143.778

Weighted average number of ordinary
shares at the beginning of the period (*)

7.960.000.000

7.960.000.000

Weighted average number of ordinary
shares at the end of the period (*)

8.098.079.300

8.098.079.300

0,0083

0,0074

At the beginning of the period, net
Recognized in statement of profit or loss
Charged to other comprehensive (loss) / income
The effect of conversion differences
At the end of the period, net

28.

Earnings per share

Earnings/(loss) per share is calculated as follows:

Profit/(loss) for the period

Earnings (loss) per share (TL)
(*)

Due to the merger transaction, the application made to the CMB on 26 December 2017 to increase the
Company's capital from TL 79.600.000 (seventy-nine million six hundred thousand) to TL 80.980.793
(eighty nine million nine hundred thousand nine hundred and ninety-three) and was registered on
December 28, 2017. It is in the nature of bonus capital increase; bonus shares are considered as issued
shares, while earning / (loss) per share is calculated. Therefore, the weighted average number of shares
used in the calculation of earnings / (loss) per share is obtained retrospectively from the perspective of
bonus shares.

29.

Related party disclosure
i. Trade receivables from related parties consist of the following:
December 31,
2017

December 31,
2016

Deceuninck Group companies
Deceuninck (main partner)

37.358.630
1.425.220

14.671.908
3.182.473

Total

38.783.850

17.854.381
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29.

Related party disclosure (continued)
i.

ii.

Other short-term receivables from related parties are as follows:
December 31,
2017

December 31,
2016

Deceuninck Group companies

2.257.750

-

Total

2.257.750

-

December 31,
2017

December 31,
2016

Deceuninck (main partner) (*)

41.232.359

-

Total

41.232.359

-

Other short-term liabilities to related parties are as follows

(*) It refers to 10 equal installments over 1 year maturity for the purchase of Pimas from Deceuninck NV.

iv. Trade payables to related parties are as follows:
December 31,
2017

December 31,
2016

Deceuninck (main partner)
Deceuninck Group companies

2.704.233
1.290.546

1.552.835

Total (Note 7)

3.994.779

1.552.835

v. The purchases of goods and services from related parties for the periods ended December 31,
2017 and 2016 are as follows:
January 1, 2017January 1, 2016December 31, 2017 December 31, 2016
Deceuninck (main partner)
Deceuninck Group companies

6.282.009
1.706.334

116.249
2.562.127

Total

7.988.343

2.678.376
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29.

Related party disclosure (continued)
vi. Sales to related parties for the periods ended December 31, 2017 and 2016 are as follows:
January 1, 2017December 31, 2017

January 1, 2016
December 31, 2016

Deceuninck (main partner)
Deceuninck Group companies

3.212.932
36.496.408

4.134.397
26.051.074

Total

39.709.340

30.185.471

vii. Fixed asset purchases from related parties for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016
are as follows:
January 1, 2017December 31, 2017

January 1, 2016
December 31, 2016

Deceuninck (main partner)
Deceuninck Group companies

1.846.364
300.361

3.070.434
-

Total

2.146.725

3.070.434

vii. Other purchases made from related parties for the periods ended December 31, 2017 and
2016 are as follows:
January 1, 2017December 31, 2017

January 1, 2016
December 31, 2016

Deceuninck (main partner) (*)
Deceuninck Group companies

11.259.779
2.246.874

7.794.966
1.848.557

Total

13.506.653

9.643.523

(*)

As of December 31, 2017 this amount consists of management service cost amounting to TL
9.288.020 (December 31, 2016 – 3.876.158 TL)
viii. . Total salaries and similar benefits provided to the senior management such as the chairman
and members of the board of directors, general manager, general coordinator and general
manager are 7.638.927 TL. (December 31, 2016 - 7.673.825 TL)
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30.

Nature and level of risks arising from financial instruments

Due to its operations, the Company is exposed to various financial risks including the effects of changes
in foreign exchange rates and interest rates in loan market and capital market prices. These risks
comprise price risk, foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s
general risk management program focuses on the unpredictable and fluctuating characteristic of the
financial markets and aims to minimize their potential negative impact on the financial performance of the
Company.
Some of the basic financial instruments of the Company are bank borrowings, cash, and short and long
term bank deposits. The main purpose in using these instruments is to finance the Company operations.
Furthermore, the Company has financial instruments like trade receivables and trade payables which are
directly related to operations.
The Company Management manages these risks in the manner stated below, and monitors the market
risks that may arise upon utilization of financial instruments.
i. Price risk
Price risk is a combination of foreign exchange, interest, and market risks. The Company’s
receivables and payables and interest bearing assets and liabilities cover and compensate
each other provided that they are of the same currency; hence, the price risk is managed
automatically. Market risk is monitored by the Company via market analyses and relevant
valuation methods.
ii. Interest rate risk
The Company does not have significant interest-sensitive assets. The Company’s income and
cash flows from its operations are mostly independent of the market interest fluctuations.
The Company’s interest rate risk arises from short and long term borrowings. The interest rates
to be applied in the future periods will affect the loans to be received for the continuation of the
Company’s operations in the subsequent period.
iii. Liquidity risk
Prudent liquidity risk management stands for maintaining sufficient cash and marketable
securities, the availability of funding through an adequate amount of committed credit facilities
and the ability to close out market positions.
The Management monitors the funding risk of the Company’s current and potential loan
requirements through maintaining continuous access to sufficient number of committed credit
lines.
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30.

Nature and level of risks arising from financial instruments (continued)

As at December 31, 2017 and 2016, the maturity breakdown of commercial and financial liabilities according to their maturity dates is as follows:
December 31, 2017
Expected or contractual terms

Book Value

Total contractual
cash outflows
(=I+II+III+IV)

Financial liabilities (non-derivative)
Bank loans
Notes payable
Trade payables
Other payables (Deferred income)
Payables to related parties

277.795.355
96.483.866
113.343.761
128.151.335
41.232.359

301.502.899
97.576.354
114.543.150
128.151.335
42.700.226

55.223.132
45.138.843
91.422.942
91.007.814
26.207.282

3.974.203

3.974.203

3.974.203

-

Book Value

Total contractual cash
outflows
(=I+II+III+IV)

Up to 3
months (I)

3-12 months
(II)

1-5 years
(III)

More than 5
years (IV

231.935.319
145.858.397
81.167.785
94.715.813

247.511.920
147.105.913
81.862.007
94.715.813

31.734.904
38.634.243
57.303.405
48.896.885

98.339.476
108.471.670
24.558.602
45.818.928

100.173.797
-

17.263.743
-

753.449

753.449

753.449

-

-

-

Up to 3
months (I)

3-12 months
(II)

1-5 years
(III)

More than 5
years (IV

100.710.044 140.952.346
52.278.114
159.397
23.120.208
37.143.469
51
16.492.944
-

4.617.377
-

Expected or contractual terms
Derivative financial liabilities

December 31, 2016
Expected or contractual terms
Financial liabilities (non-derivative)
Bank loans
Notes payable
Trade payables
Other payables (Deferred income)

-

-

Expected or contractual terms
Derivative financial liabilities
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30.

Nature and level of risks arising from financial instruments (continued)
iv. Credit risk

Ownership of financial assets involves the risk that counterparties may be unable to meet the terms of
their agreements. The Company management monitors such risks by minimizing the average risk for the
counterparty in the agreements (other than related parties) and receiving collaterals when necessary.
The Company’s collection risk basically arises from its trade receivables from dealers or other
customers. The Company monitors this risk either by extending the credit limits allocated to dealers up to
the level of collaterals received or by receiving advance payments. The utilization of these credit limits
are continuously followed up by the management and the credit quality is regularly assessed taking into
consideration the customer’s financial position, past experience and other similar factors.
Trade receivables are evaluated by the Company management based on past experiences and current
economic condition, and are presented in the financial statements net of provision for doubtful
receivables.
The Company attempts to control credit risk by extending the range of its sales operations, avoiding
unfavourable concentrations on persons or groups of a certain sector or region. The Company also
obtains collaterals from customers when deemed necessary.
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30.

Nature and level of risks arising from financial instruments (continued)
iv. Credit risk (continued)
Information on maturity overdue and collateral structure of receivables and cash and cash equivalents are as follows:

Trade
receivables
(Note 7)

December 31, 2017
Maximum credit risk exposure as of reporting date (A+B+C+D+E) (1)
- Maximum risk secured by guarantee
A. Net book value of financial assets neither overdue nor impaired
B. Net book value of financial assets of which conditions are negotiated, otherwise considered as impaired
or overdue
C. Net book value of assets overdue but not impaired
D. Net book value of impaired assets
- Overdue (gross book value)
- Impairment (-) (Note 7)
- Net value under guarantee
- Not overdue (gross book value)
- Impairment (-)
- Net value under guarantee
E. Off-balance sheet items having credit risk

Trade
receivables
Cheques
from related submitted for
parties
collection
(Note 7))
(Note 4)

449.253.640
336.470.486
433.418.673

38.783.830
38.783.830

25.208.924
25.208.924

30.831.479
30.831.479

15.834.967

-

-

-

44.370.411
(44.370.411)
-

1) In determining the credit amounts, factors that increase credit reliability, i.e. the guarantees received, are not taken into consideration.
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30.

Nature and level of risks arising from financial instruments (continued)
iv.

Credit risk (continued)
Disclosures regarding maturity and guarantee structure of receivables and cash and cash equivalents are as follows:

Trade
receivables
(Note 7)

December 31 2016
Maximum credit risk exposure as of reporting date (A+B+C+D+E) (1)
- Maximum risk secured by guarantee
A. Net book value of financial assets neither overdue nor impaired
B. Net book value of financial assets of which conditions are negotiated, otherwise considered as impaired or
overdue
C. Net book value of assets overdue but not impaired
D. Net book value of impaired assets
- Overdue (gross book value)
- Impairment (-) (Note 7)
- Net value under guarantee
- Not overdue (gross book value)
- Impairment (-)
- Net value under guarantee
E. Off-balance sheet items having credit risk

Trade
receivables
Cheques
from related submitted for
parties
collection
(Note 7)
(Note 4)

365.698.984
289.619.871
353.156.034

17.854.381
17.854.381

17.627.351
17.627.351

91.841.870
91.841.870

12.542.950
50.662.329
(50.662.329)
-

-

-

-

1) In determining the credit amounts, factors that increase credit reliability, i.e. the guarantees received, are not taken into consideration.
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30.

Nature and level of risks arising from financial instruments (continued)
v. Foreign currency risk

The Company carries foreign exchange risk due to its assets and liabilities denominated in USD and
Euro.
The Company and its Subsidiaries are also exposed to foreign exchange risk due to the transactions
made. Such risks arise from sales and purchases of goods and receiving bank loans denominated in
currencies other than the Company’s functional currency.
The Company monitors its foreign exchange risk by maintaining the balance between its foreign
currency assets and liabilities and changing its pricing policy in line with the currency fluctuations, and
also by analysing its foreign currency position. The net foreign currency position of the Group as of
December 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016 is stated in detail below.
In total;
December 31,
2017
(TL Amount)

December 31,
2016
(TL Amount)

A. Assets denominated in foreign currency
B. Liabilities denominated in foreign currency

113.882.390
(227.642.384)

126.859.447
(269.373.052)

Net foreign currency position (A+B)

(113.759.994)

(142.513.605)
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30.

Nature and level of risks arising from financial instruments (continued)

The foreign currency position of the Group as of December 31, 2017 is as follows:
TL equivalent
(functional
currency)

USD

100.902.057

3.233.995

10.276.647
2.703.686

1.824.707
5.040

113.882.390

5.063.742

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

113.882.390

5.063.742

1. Trade receivables
2a. Monetary financial assets (including cash and
bank accounts)
2b. Non-monetary financial assets
3. Other
4. Current assets (1+2+3)
5.
6a.
6b.
7.

Trade receivables
Monetary financial assets
Non-monetary financial assets
Other

8. Non-current assets (5+6+7)
9. Total assets (4+8)

EUR

AUD

18.044.538 2.458.359
751.641
594.547

-

19.390.725 2.458.359

19.390.725 2.458.359

Trade payables
Financial liabilities
Monetary other liabilities
Non-monetary other liabilities

(120.075.876) (26.940.701)
(20.951.018)
-

(4.087.681)
(4.639.800)
-

(111)
-

13. Short term liabilities (10+11+12)

(141.026.894) (26.940.701)

(8.727.481)

(111)

10.
11.
12a.
12b.

Trade payables
Financial liabilities
Monetary other liabilities
Non-monetary other liabilities

(86.615.490)
-

- (19.181.816)
-

-

17. Long term liabilities (14+15+16)

(86.615.490)

- (19.181.816)

-

(227.642.384) (26.940.701) (27.909.297)

(111)

14.
15.
16a.
16b.

18. Total liabilities (13+17)
19. Net asset/(liability) position of off-balance
sheet derivative instruments (19a-19b)
19a. Total hedged asset amount
19b. Total hedged liability amount
20. Net foreign currency asset/(liability)
position (9+18+19)
21. Net foreign currency asset/
(liability)position of monetary items
(=1+2a+5+6a-10-11-12a-14-15-16a)

117.089.018
117.089.018

22.063.885
22.063.885

3.329.012

186.926

(1.018.574) 2.458.248

(116.463.694) (21.881.999)

(9.113.121) 2.458.470

22. Total fair value of financial instruments used
for foreign currency hedging
23. Export(*)
24. Import(*)
(*)

117.089.018
107.578.288
294.217.907

Average rate of exchange is used.
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30.

Nature and level of risks arising from financial instruments (continued)

The foreign currency position of the Group as of December 31, 2016 is as follows:
TL equivalent
(functional
currency)

USD

89.120.492

829.573

36.311.215
1.427.740

9.129.009
65.920

126.859.447

10.024.502

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

126.859.447

10.024.502

1. Trade receivables
2a. Monetary financial assets (including cash and
bank accounts)
2b. Non-monetary financial assets
3. Other
4. Current assets (1+2+3)
5.
6a.
6b.
7.

Trade receivables
Monetary financial assets
Non-monetary financial assets
Other

8. Non-current assets (5+6+7)
9. Total assets (4+8)
10.
11.
12a.
12b.

EUR

AUD

22.034.481 1.756.422
1.127.903
322.314

-

23.484.698 1.756.422

23.484.698 1.756.422

Trade payables
Financial liabilities
Monetary other liabilities
Non-monetary other liabilities

(160.819.298) (42.513.218)
(24.199.837)
-

(3.020.777)
(6.523.043)
-

-

13. Short term liabilities (10+11+12)

(185.019.135) (42.513.218)

(9.543.820)

-

(10.800) (22.727.273)
(10.800) (22.727.273)

-

(269.373.052) (42.524.018) (32.271.093)

-

14.
15.
16a.
16b.

Trade payables
Financial liabilities
Monetary other liabilities
Non-monetary other liabilities

(38.007)
(84.315.910)
(84.353.917)

17. Long term liabilities (14+15+16)
18. Total liabilities (13+17)
19. Net asset/(liability) position of off-balance
sheet derivative instruments (19a-19b)
19a. Total hedged asset amount
19b. Total hedged liability amount
20. Net foreign currency asset/(liability)
position (9+18+19)
21. Net foreign currency asset/
(liability)position of monetary items
(1+2a+5+6a-10-11-12a-14-15-16a)

146.703.284
146.703.284

33.253.036
33.253.036

4.189.680

753.520

8.000.000
8.000.000

-

(786.395) 1.756.422

(157.929.940) (32.615.819) (12.831.529) 1.756.422
(153.740.260) (31.862.299) (13.617.924) 3.512.844

22. Total fair value of financial instruments used
for foreign currency hedging
23. Export(*)
24. Import(*)

97.593.750
219.633.231

(*) Average rate of exchange is used.
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30.

Nature and level of risks arising from financial instruments (continued)

Due to exchange rate fluctuations, the Company and its Subsidiaries are exposed to foreign currency
risk while translating to Turkish Lira the foreign currency payables and receivables arising from trade
operations with foreign entities. Such risks are monitored and controlled by regular analysis of the
foreign currency position. The Company and its Subsidiaries follow a policy of diversifying their foreign
currency position in order to manage foreign currency risk that may arise from future trade operations
and the related assets and liabilities recognized.
The following tables demonstrate the sensitivity to a possible change of 10% in the USD, Euro, and
AUD exchange rates, with all other variables held constant, on the income before tax of the Group as
of December 31, 2017 and 2016:
December 31, 2017
Profit/Loss
Foreign
Foreign
currency
currency
appreciation
depreciation
When USD changes by 10% against TL:
When USD changes by 10% against TL:
1- USD net asset/liability
2- Amount hedged from USD risk (-)
3- USD Net Effect (1+2)
When Euro changes by 10% against TL:
4- Euro net asset/liability
5- Amount hedged from Euro risk (-)
6 Euro Net Effect (4+5)
When AUD changes by 10% against TL:
7- AUD net asset/liability
8- Amount hedged from AUD risk (-)
9- AUD Net Effect (7+8)

(8.251.770)
8.322.277
70.507

8.251.770
(8.322.277)
(70.507)

-

-

(3.846.562)
3.386.625
(459.937)

3.846.562
(3.386.625)
459.937

-

-

722.332
722.332
332.901

(722.332)
(722.332)
(332.901)

-

-

December 31, 2016
Profit/Loss
Foreign
Foreign
currency
currency
appreciation
depreciation
When USD changes by 10% against TL:
1- USD net asset/liability
2- Amount hedged from USD risk (-)
3- USD Net Effect (1+2)
When Euro changes by 10% against TL:
4- Euro net asset/liability
5- Amount hedged from Euro risk (-)
6 Avro Net Effect (4+5)
When AUD changes by 10% against TL:
7- AUD net asset/liability
8- Amount hedged from AUD risk (-)
9- AUD Net Effect (7+8)
Total (3+6+9+12)

Equity
Foreign
Foreign
currency
currency
appreciation
depreciation

Equity
Foreign
Foreign
currency
currency
appreciation
depreciation

(11.437.229)
11.702.408
265.179

11.437.229
(11.702.408)
(265.179)

-

-

(3.259.665)
2.967.920
(291.745)

3.259.665
(2.967.920)
291.745

-

-

445.534
445.534
(979.892)

(445.534)
(445.534)
979.892

-

-
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30.

Nature and level of risks arising from financial instruments (continued)

vi. Capital management
In managing capital, the objectives of the Company are to maintain the activities of the Company in
order to maintain the optimal capital structure in order to benefit the shareholders, to benefit other
shareholders and to reduce the cost of capital.
In parallel with the other entities in the sector, the Company monitors its debt/equity ratios for capital
management purposes. This ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total equity. Net debt is
calculated as the total liability (total amount of short and long term liabilities in the statement of
financial position) less cash and cash equivalents. Total share capital is the sum of all equity items
recognized in the statement of financial position.
December 31, 2017 December 31, 2016
Total liabilities
Cash and cash equivalents (-) (Note 4)

690.777.740
56.899.490

580.331.690
109.761.990

Net liabilities

747.677.230

690.093.680

Total capital

353.012.233

366.432.186

212%

188%

Net liabilities / total equity ratio
Fair value

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged or a liability settled in an arm's length
transaction between knowledgeable willing parties, other than in a forced sale or liquidation, and is best
evidenced by a quoted market price, where one exists.
The Company has determined the estimated values of its financial instruments by using the available
market information and best practices for valuation. However, fair value measurement requires
interpretation and reasoning. Accordingly, the estimates arrived at may not always be the indicators of
values that the Company would obtain from a current market operation.
The Company Management assumes that the carrying values of financial instruments approximate their
fair values.
Financial assets
These assets are cash and cash equivalents, relevant interest accruals and other short term financial
assets, recognized at cost. As they are short term assets, their carrying values are deemed to
approximate their fair values. The carrying values of trade receivables less provisions made for
rediscount and doubtful receivables, are deemed to approximate their fair values.
Financial liabilities
Monetary debts whose carrying values approximate their fair values:
The fair values of trade payables and other monetary liabilities are estimated to approximate carrying
value due to their short-term nature. Bank loans are stated at discounted cost and the transaction
costs are added onto the initial recording of loans. The fair values of bank borrowings are considered
to approximate their respective carrying values, since the interest rates applied to bank borrowings are
updated periodically to reflect active market price quotations.
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30. Nature and level of risks arising from financial instruments (continued)
Table of fair value measurement hierarchy
The Company classifies the fair value measurement of each class of financial instruments according to
their sources, using a three-level hierarchy as follows.
Level 1: Market price valuation techniques for the determined financial instruments traded in markets
Level 2: Other valuation techniques includes direct or indirect observable inputs
Level 3: Valuation techniques does not contains observable market inputs
The hierarchy table of financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value as of December 31, 2017 is
as follows:
Level 1

Level 2 (*)

Level 3

Financial assets carried at fair value

-

-

-

Financial liabilities carried at fair value

-

(3.974.203)

-

The hierarchy table of financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value as of December 31, 2016 is
as follows:
Level 1

Level 2 (*)

Level 3

Financial assets carried at fair value

-

6.941.547

-

Financial liabilities carried at fair value

-

753.449

-

(*)

Fair value is measured taking as basis the market interest rates for the related currency
effective in the remaining part of the contract.

32.

Subsequent events

None.
33.

Disclosure of other matters

Convenience translation to English:
As at December 31, 2017, the accounting principles described in Note 2 (defined as Turkish
Accounting Standards/Turkish Financial Reporting Standards) to the accompanying financial
statements differ from International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board with respect to the application of inflation accounting, certain
reclassifications and also for certain disclosures requirement of the CMB of Turkey.
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